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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/y/S/OJy FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fnx: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 26, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (Vendor
#177575-8001), Contoocook, NH, for the provision of Care Management Entity services for the
FAST Forward program, by exercising a contract renewal option, increasing the price limitation
by $2,300,000 from $2,452,160 to 4,752,160 and by extending the completion date from June 30,
2021 to June 30, 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, item
#398. It was subsequently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 20,2018,
item #20, and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 10, 2020,
item #11.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-921010-2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM
OF CARE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2018 072-509073
Grants-

Federal
92102100 $6,000 $0 $6,000

2018 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92102053 $91,160 $0 $91,160

2019 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92102053 $420,000 $0 $420,000

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92102053 $785,000 $0 $785,000

The Dcparlmenl of Health and Human Scruices' Mission is to join communities and families

in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

92102053 $1,150,000 $0 $1,150,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Senrices

92102053 $0 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

92102053 $0 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

Total $2,452,160 $2,300,000 $4,752,160

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because Amendment #2 of this contract was approved as
sole source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labeled as sole source.
The Contractor is uniquely qualified to provide these services as Senate Bill 14, of the 2019
Regular Legislation Session, amended RSA 135:F to require a Care Management Entity to
provide this oversight for the State, and NFI North is one of two Care Management Entities in the
State.

The purpose of this request is to continue to support the provision of Care Management
Entity services for the FAST Forward program, which Include, but are not limited to;

•  Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

•  Wraparound Coordination.

•  Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Provision of Youth peer support.

•  Provision of Family Peer Support.

•  Determination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

•  Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other non-
Medicaid blllable services.

Qualifying children and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged five (5) through twenty-one (21),
experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of SED, and are at risk of multi-
agency Involvement. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can be
served in their , home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending their
community's school program. Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include, but are
not limited to: increased positive social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community
connectedness for children, youth, and families; decreased out of home, school, and community
placements (and duration of such); increased caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and
access to programs and supports that are uniquely tailored to each child and family's culture,
strengths, and goals. This is a unique program in New Hampshire to service the described
population in this manner.
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Qualifying children and youth are those vyho are eligible for Medicaid aged five (5) through
twenty-one (21). experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of serious emotional
disturbances, and at risk of multi-agency involvement. Approximately 325 individuals and
approximately 1,100 family members will be served from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2023.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeat use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire
Hospital. Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care within
the Department, which is required to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  95% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive the Child and
Adolescent Needs and Strer^hs (CANS) assessment tool which is used with psychiatric
oversight and FAST Forward engagements.

•  80% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive the Youth
Progress Scale (VPS) and Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools.

•  100% of children, youth and young adults as well as their families receive completed FAST
Forward plans of care.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of the contract, the parties have the option to extend the
agreement for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the two (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, families with children and
youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available to them in
their communities to meet the challenges that are presented by mental illness. Further, the
Department may be out of compliance with RSA 135:F.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

/
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
NFI North, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item # 39B), as amended on September 20, 2018, (Item #20), and as amended on June
10, 2020, (Item #11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,752,160

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3,
Subsection 3.4, to read:

3.4. Lastly, the Contractor shall bill this Agreement, for services provided to individuals that are
not billable to other insurance or payors, or Medicaid as follows:

3.4.1. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department in accordance
with Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department for actual
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with the
approved line items as specified in the Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget,
and Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, shall be on a cost reimbursement
basis.

3.4.3. Reimbursement for costs billed to the Department shall be made monthly.

4. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

5. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01 -AOS

A-S-1.0

NFI North, Inc.

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date
5/11/2021
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Al) terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/11/2021

Date

—DocuSlgned by:

lCUf4. fcst
■—ED0005BCMCe3442...

Title: Director

5/11/2021

Date

NFI North, Inc.
— 0«euSign«d by:

piluL i. fU)} I)inxt6}r df Nfl
•BA52B9D3SES440E..

Name: Paul l. oann, Pho, Executive Director of NFI North

Executive Director

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM-01-A03

A-S-1.0

NFI North, Inc.

Page 2 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6408AD09-A7FD^E36-9852-6193BAA888FC

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocoSlon«d by;

5/12/2021

D5CA9202E32C4AE...

Date Name^ Catherine Pinos
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting) ^

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM.01-A03 NFI North, Inc.

A-S-1.0 Page 3 of 3
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Care Management Entity Services (or FAST Forward Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3

SFY 2022 Budget

New Hampshire Department of HeaHh and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: NFI North. Inc.

Budget Reguest for: Care Manaaement Entity Services tor FAST Forward

Budget Period: SFY 2022 t7/1/2021-6/30/2022t

Totai Program Cost Contractor Share 1 Match Funded by DHHS contract share {

Direct indirect Totai Direct indirect Totai Direct Indirect Total
Line Kem incrementai Fixed incrementai Fixed incrementai Fixed
1. Total SaiaryfWaoes 5  3.543.570.00 i 352.857.00 i 3.896.427.00 s 3.523.570.00 352.857.00 $ 3.876,427.00 i 20.000.00 s  20.000.00
2. Emglovee Bertefits $  982.142.30 88.214.23 t 970.356.53 $ 882.142.30 S 88.214.23 $ 970.356.53

3. Consultants s s S $ i - s

4. Eouiomeni: s $ s S . $

Rental $  44.600.00 $ 4.460.00 s 49.060.00 s 44.600.00 $ 4.460.00 s 49,060.00
Reoair and MaintertarKe s - s s -

PurchasefOeoreciailon i  62.000.00 i 6.200.00 s 68.200.00 s 62.000.00 i 6.200.00 s 68.200.00 s

5. Supplies: s s $ .  - s $ .

Educational S  45.500.00 s 4.5S0.00 s 50,050.00 s 45.500.00 i 4.550.00 s 50,050.00
l.ab s $ i s . $

Pharmecv s $ $ s $

Medical s $ $ s . $

Office S  61.000.00 s 6.100.00 s 67,100-00 s 61.000.00 % 6.100.00 $ 67.100.00

6. Travel S  521.000.00 s 52.101.00 s 573.101.00 s 501,000.00 % 50.101.00 $ 551,101.00 s 20.000.00 i  2.000.00 $  22.000.00

7. Ocojoancv $  139.956.00 s 13.997.60 s 153.953.60 s 125.666.00 s 12.587.60 s 138,453.60 s 14.090.00 $  1.410.00 S  15.500.00
9. Current Expertses s s - s s $

Telephone %  94.500.00 s 8,450.00 s 92.950.00 s 84.500.00 $ 8.450.00 $ 92.950.00
Postaoe S  2.000.00 s 200.00 $ 2.200.00 s 2.000.00 $ 200.00 $ 2.200.00 s

Subscrtptions s 5 - $ s $
Aude and Legal - S - i $ s

Insurance i  32.802.00 s 3.280.20 i 36.082.20 32.602.00 i 3.280.20 s 36,062.20 s $

Board Exoertses - % - s s

9. Software S  8.000.00 s 600.00 % 6.600.00 s 6.000.00 s 600.00 s 8,800.00 s

10. Marhetirxi/Commurticaiions $  18.000.00 s 1.800.00 i 19.6(X).00 16.000.00 $ 1.800.00 $ 19.800.00 $

11. Staff Education and Trairiing $  1.279.200.00 127,920.00 % 1,407.120-00 s 1.104.200.00 $ 110.420.00 s 1,214.620.00 $ 175.000.00 %  17,500.00 %  192.500.00
12. Subcontracts/Aoreemertts $  8.672,514.00 867.251.40 s 9,539.765.40 $ 8,172,514,00 $ 867.251.40 s 9.039.765.40 s 500.000.00 s S  500.000.00
13, Other (specific details martdalorv):

- s • $ s - s
Flex funds, other dent exoense S  490.500.00 $ 49.050.00 $ 539.550.00 % 490.500.00 $ 49.050.00 $ 539.550.00

BBStq for Unlrtsixed S  400.000.00 s s 400.000.00 s 6 s s 400.000.00 s S  400.000.00
• i - $ - J s i -

TOTAL S  16.287.284.30 s 1.587,231.43 s 17.874,515.73 i 15.158.194,30 i s 6,724.515.73 1 1.129.090.00 $  20,910.00 % 1.1SO.OOO.OO

NFi North. Inc.

RFP-2018^H-02-CAREM-01-A03

ExhWt B-6 Amendment HZ SFY 2022 Budget
Page t of i

Contractor Initials

Da.t5/ll/2021
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Cars Mans0efT>eni Entity Services for FAST Forward Exhibit B-7 Amendment #3

SFY 2023 Budget

New Hampshire Department of HeaHh and Human Services

BidderfProgram Name: NFI North. Inc.

Budget Request for: Care ManaaerTvent Entity Services for FAST Forward

Budget Period: SFY 2023<7/1/2022-6/30f20231

Total Program Cost Contractor Share 1 Match • Funded by DHHS contract share

Oiroct Indirect Total Direct Indlrect Total Direct Indirect Total

Line Rem incremental Fixed Incremental Fixed Incremental Fixed

1. Total SataryAVages S  3,684.512.80 $ 366.951.28 4.051.464.08 i 3.664,512.80 366.951.28 i 4.031,464.08 i 20.000.00 s S  20.000.00

2. Emplovee Benefits $  917.427.99 $ 91.742.80 $ 1.009.170.79 s 917.427.99 5 91.742.80 5 1.009.170.79 s

3. Cortsuttants $ S s - S S • s

4. Eouioment: $ s - s $ - S • s $

Rental S  44.600.00 s 4,460.00 % 49.060.00 5 44,600.00 s 4.460.00 s 49,060.00 s

Repair and Uaintenarwe s . % 6 • $ - s s

Putdhase/Deoredadon $  62.000.00 $ 6.200.00 $ 68.200.00 S 62.000.00 S 6.200.00 s 68.200.00 $

5. SuooAes: $ . $ s - s • s

Educational S  45.500.00 s 4,550.00 t 50.050.00 s 45,500.00 i 4,550.00 s 50.050.00

Lab J $ s $

Pttarmacv $ i j s $

Medical $ $ - i $

Office i  61.000.00 s 6.100.00 S 67.100.00 s 61,000.00 5 6.100.00 s 67,100.00

6. Travel S  521,000.00 s 52.101.00 $ 573,101.00 $ 501.000.00 $ 50.101.00 s 551.101.00 $ 20,000.00 S  2.000.00 S  22,000.00

7. Occuoancv $  139.956.00 13.997.60 s 153,953.60 s 125,866.00 S 12.587.60 s 138.453.60 s 14,090.00 $  1.410.00 S  15.500.00

8. Currere Expenses s $ s i s • s s

Telephone $  84.500.00 s 6.450.00 s 92.950.00 i 84.500.00 s e.450.00 s 92,950.00 6

Postaoe 5  2.000.00 $ 200.00 s 2.200.00 s 2.000.00 s 200.W s 2^00.00 $ S

Subscriptions s . i $ - s • $

1

1

1
<

s • i i - s •

Insurance S  32.802.00 s 3.280.20 s 36.082.20 s 32.802.00 $ 3.280.20 s 36.082.20

Board Expenses s . S 6 - s

9. Software S  8.000.00 $ 800.00 s 8.800.00 s 8.000.00 s 600.00 5 8.600.00

10. Marketing/Communications S  18.000.00 s 1.800.00 s 19.600.00 s 18.000.00 5 1.800.00 s 19,800.00

11. Staff Education and Training - $  1,279.200.00 s 127.920.00 s 1,407.120.00 s 1.104,200.00 S 110.420.00 s 1.214.620,00 s 175.000.00 $  17.500.00 $  192.500.00

12. Subcontracts/Aoreemems $  6.672.514.00 867.251.40 s 9,539.765.40 s 8.172,514.00 867,251.40 $ 9,039.765.40 s 500.000.00 S  500.000.00

13. Other (specific deiais martdatorv): $ i . $ s 5

Flex futxis. other cieni expense S  490,500.00 s 49.050.00 % 539.550.00 $ 490.500.00 s 49.050.00 s 539,550.00 S

F

c

I

1

$  400,000.00 s s 400,000.00 $ s s • 400.000.00 S S  400.000.00

5 % $ - 5 J i • • J s

TOTAL i  16.463.512.79 1,604,854.28 s 18,068.367.07 T T s 16.918.367.07 1,129.090.00 S  20.910.00 6 1,150,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NR North. Inc.

RFP.2018-0eH-02-CAREKW1 -A03

Exhtoil B-7 Amendment #3 SFY 2023 Budget
Page i of i

p(Ji)p-e9iM)

Contractor Initials.

Oate5/ll/2021
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFI NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992.1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number: 0005348612

o

%

u>

o

N

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 14ihdayof April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

<1:1. r ,  hereby certify,that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Of fleer of
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. Tt>e following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Dlreclors/sharehblders, duly called and
held on . 20'2- /. at which a quomm of the Directors/shareholders were.present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That l. (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of. to enter into contracts oragreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire .and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, whicti
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify thai said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached, this authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the dale of this Certificate of. Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Harripshlre will rely on this certificate as eviderice that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positioti(s) indicated arid that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent thatThere are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. .

I  Signature of E(ent«ri Offirer
Nam<Name: /fi $ G-'i

Rev. 03/24/20

0jm«V8Cei»-ZS8«-0C3r<]d£V-e0OV8Or9 :ai tdoiSAug uOisnwa
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ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YVYY)

12/22/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

CONYACt
NAME:

E.t,: 855 874-0123 fwc. nol 781-376.5035
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

rNSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Company 32204

INSURED

North American Family Institute Inc.

90 Maple St.

Suite 2

Stoneham, MA 02180

INSURERS North River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AIL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDLSUBR
INSR IWVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DOmrYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/OD/YYYY) LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E 1 XjOCCUR
PHPK2216753 01/01/2021 01/01/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE 10 RENTED
PREMISES lEe occurrence) $1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

POLICY t 1 JECT 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - CX)MP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2216756 01/01/2021 01/01/2022
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddenl) s1,000,000

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

Comp $1,000

sc
At

HEDULED
TOS
)N-OWNED
TOS ONLY

1 $1,000

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

X X
NC
At

PROPERTY DAMAGE
tPer accldentl

$

X X Co $

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB749675 01/01/2021 01/01/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

DED Xl RETENTION $10000 s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEl 1
0PPICERA4EMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
II yes, descritw under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

4067334594 07/01/2020 07/01/2021
PER OTH-
STATIITF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

A Professional PHPK2216753 01/01/2021 01/01/2022 $1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Romarks Schodulo, may bo attached If more space is required)

RE: 787 Maple St. Route 142, Bethlehem NH 03574.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH

Dept Health & Human Services;

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Independent Auditors'Report

The Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.;

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and in
accordance with the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to NFIN's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NFIN as of June 30,2020 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMQ LLP IS e OnlAwaro llrnluid liihilirr MHicis'iip uiu V S iiioiroci
tiffn of rho KPMG nfli'.vwk of mnritjor firms aftilioioc) witfi
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30. 2020
on our consideration of the NFIN's internal control over financial reporting on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
those reports is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over Hnancial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Those reports are an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

September 30, 2020
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30. 2020

Assets

Current assets;

Cash and equivalents $ 3,203,891 •
Accounts receivable, net 3,877,890
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 75,091
Due from affiliate (note 8) 25,763
Investnwnts (note 4) 1,580,799

Total current assets 8,743,434

Property and equipment (note 5);
Land 535,992
Buildings and improvements 8,119,682
Equipment and furnishings 632,222
Motor vehicles 967,988

10,255,884

Less accumulated depreciation (6,416,357)

Property and equipment, net 3,839,527

Other assets 13.250

Total assets S 12,596,211

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5) $ 200,587
Accounts payable 173,956
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 992,467
Other accrued expenses 513,693
Deferred revenue 312.791 •

Total current liabilities 2,193,494

Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5) 2,436,785
Due to affiliate long-term (note 8) 209,842
Other liabilities 248,850

Total long-term liabilities 2,895,477

Total liabilities 5,088,971

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions 7,313,099

With donor restrictions 194.141

Total net assets 7,507,240

Total liabilities and net assets $ ̂^^2^596^2^^

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2020

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions;
Revenues and other support:

Contracts, net

Contributions:

In-kind

Other

Interest and dividends

Miscellaneous

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenues and other support

Expenses:
Program services
Supporting services (note 8)

Total expenses

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating activities

Nonoperating activities:

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments
Gain on sale of property and equipment

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions:

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

$  28,876,360

867,793

8,929

60,314

7,614

29,821,010

30,429

29,851,439

25,081,172

2,866,995

27,948.167

1,903,272

59,241

18,183

1,980,696

141,061

(30,429)

110,632

2,091,328

5,415,912

7,507,240

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended June 30, 2020

Program Supporting
services services Total

Personnel expenses:

Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits $ 17,875,603 1,365,039 19,240,642

Other expenses;

Contracted services 2,483,128 1,211,342 3,694,470

Other direct costs 1,137,231 141,935 1,279,166

Consumables 875,767 — 875,767

In-kind 871.942 — 871,942

Occupancy 714,399 21,565 735,964

Transportation 361,134 20,538 381,672

Equipment 169,289 43,697 212,986

Interest 98,970 7,922 106,892

6,711,860 1,446,999 8,158,859

Depreciation and amortization 493,709 54,957 548,666

Total expenses $ 25,081,172 2,866,995 27,948,167

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on sale of property and equipment

Net realized and unrealized gain on investment

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Due from affiliate

Other assets

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other accrued expenses

Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental data:

Cash paid for interest

2,091,328

548,666
(18,183)

(59.241)

(2,374,240)

(22,376)

66,963

(694)

3,405

559,215

175,715

(9,393)
124,277

1,085,442

(317,763)
(2,056,079)

32,000

1,056,080

(1,285.762)

(197,093)

(197,093)

(397,413)

3,601,304

3,203,891

106,892

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) is a not-for-profit organization whose purpose is to provide community-based social
services to individuals and their families. NFIN is a subsidiary of North American Family Institute. Inc.
(NAFI), which is the sole member of NFIN's board of directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are
derived from services contracted with the States of Maine and New Hampshire Departments of Human

Services, Children, Youth and Families, Medicaid, private insurers, and local public school districts.

(a) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have
been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are
classified as follows:

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met by
actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

Without donor restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related
assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions. Expenses are reported as
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets

or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their
use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor

.  restrictions are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations

of restrictions with donor restrictions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donor restrictions are available, a donor-imposed restriction is
fulfilled to the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense is for a purpose that is directly

attributable to another specified external source of revenue.

(b) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
(ASC Topic 606), revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the promised
goods or services is transferred in an amount that reflects the consideration to which we expect to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services (i.e., the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and fee-for service
contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services
delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is generally as expenses are incurred. Rate
based contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services delivered over the course
of client stay based on an established rate with the related funding source which is generally when
services are provided. Revenues from contracts consisted of 16% for cost reimbursement contracts
and 84% for rate based contracts for the year ended June 30, 2020.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2020

(c) Income Taxes

NFIN is an organization described under Section 501 (c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is
generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501 (a). NFIN has taken no significant uncertain
tax positions.

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(e) Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually. Legislative
budgets could significantly Impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to continue existing
programs.

(f) Cash and Equivalents

All short-term investments with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are considered
cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows. Included in cash and equivalents is
$194,141 of cash with donor restrictions. Cash equivalents within investment accounts are considered
to be investments for the purposes of the statement of cash flows.

(g) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair value at the
date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives;

Buildings and improvements 15-33.3 years
Equipment and furnishings 2-10 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according to the organization's normal
depreciation policy except that the time period shall be the shorter of: 1) the useful life of the leasehold
improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining years of the lease include the
years in the lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

(h) Self-Insurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical healthcare costs. As of June 30, 2020, the estimated liability
for healthcare claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $146,897 and is included in accrued
payroll and related liabilities in the accompanying statement of financial position.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

(i) In-Kind Contributions

In-kind contributions are generally recognized at fair value on the date received. During fiscal 2020,
NFIN received in-kind contributions of rent, equipment and furnishings, and consumables amounting to
$867,793.

(j) Fair Value of Financial instruments

Fair value represents the price that NFIN would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid upon the
transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date.
NAFI uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and liabilities based on those valuation

methodologies employed. The three-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels
listed below.

•  Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

•  Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

•  Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs (including NFIN's own assumptions in determining the fair
value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimizes
the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

(k) Subsequent Events

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic.
Despite the current economic environment as result of the pandemic, beginning in March 2020,
NFIN continues to receive funding from state and federal contracts, and is able to continue its
operations in providing community-based social services to individuals and their families.
NFIN received emergency funding from the State of Maine and New Hampshire to assist potential
additional costs associated with the COVID-19 pandemic. The full extent of the impact of COVID-19 on
NFIN's finances is uncertain and will depend on the duration and depth of the pandemic.

NFIN has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2020 and through September 30, 2020, which is
the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. NFIN has determined there are no

material events that would require recognition or disclosure in this report through this date.

(Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

(2) Financial Asset and Liquidity Resources

As of June 30. 2020, financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditures, such as operating expenses and scheduled principal payments on debt, were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,203,891
Accounts receivable, 3,877,890
Investments 1,560,799

Due from affiliates 25,763

Total financial assets available within one year $ 8,668,343

(3) Line of Credit

NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut, Inc. {NAFICT), NFI Vermont,
Inc. (NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts, Inc. (NFI). an on demand $8,000,000 line of credit from TO Bank. The
line of credit bears interest at a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, plus
0.50% per annum, (3.75% as of June 30, 2020). Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI,
NFIN, NAFICT, NFIV and NFI and are collateralized by substantially all of their assets.

Borrowings under the line of credit are due upon demand, and the line is subject to annual renewal. As of
June 30, 2020, $1,075,000 was outstanding under this line of credit, none of which was due from NFIN.

In addition, for the year ended June 30. 2020, NAFI has entered into Letter of Credit agreements with TO
Bank for a total of $1,165,124. The Letter of Credit agreements can be utilized by all subsidiaries in the
aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit agreements are'
a requirement of NAFI's workers' compensation carrier.

(4) Investments

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Corporate Iwnds $ 649,699
Equities 603,545

Cash and equivalents 307,555

$  1,560,799

All investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, except
corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair value levels during
the year.

10 (Continued)



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64D8AD09-A7FD-4E36-9852-6193BAA888FC

NFI NORTH. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

(5) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30. 2020 consisted of the following:

Interest rate as of June 30, 2020

Mortgages payable, secured by real estate:
0.00%-8.00% fixed

Total mortgages payable

Vehicle notes secured by automobiles:
0.00%-8.59% fixed

Total vehicle notes payable

Total long-term debt

Less current portion

Total long-term debt, net of current portion

Fiscal year

due

2022-2031 $

2021-2024

Amount

2,535,476

2,535,476

101,896

101,896

2,637,372

(200,587)

$  2,436,785

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will be forgiven at
the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide housing in accordance with
stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable contain various prepayment penaities.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

Thereafter

Amount due

200,587

346,732

122,463

125.849

124,465

1,717,276

2,637,372

Interest expense was $106,892 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

11 (Continued)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

(6) Operating Leases

NFIN leases certain property, motor vehicles, and equipment under noncancelable (except under certain
circumstances) operating lease arrangements. Rental and lease expense amounted to $126,434 for the
year ended June 30, 2020, including $48,188 of related party property charges described in note 8. These
expenses are included in occupancy expense in the accompanying statement of functional expenses.
Future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Amount due

Year ending June 30:

2021 $ 35,320

2022 19,749

2023 6,337

2024 712

$ 62,118

(7) Retirement Plan

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which annual
contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's board of directors. NFIN elected to contribute $172,365

for the year ended June 30, 2020. These expenses are Included in salaries, payroll taxes and employee
benefits expenses within the accompanying statement of functional expenses.

(8) Related-Party Transactions

North American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), an affiliate, charges an administrative management fee for
supporting service costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries. These allocated costs amounted to
$1,355,534 for the year ended June 30, 2020, and have been included in supporting services expenses in
the accompanying statements of activities and contracted services expenses within the statement of
functional expenses.

In addition, NFIN pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI. This charge was
$48,188 for the year ended June 30, 2020, and has been included in the accompanying statements of
activities and functional expenses.

Cost reimbursement underpayments resulted in a balance due to NAFI as of June 30, 2020 in the amount
of $209,842. This amount has been reported as due to affiliate in the accompanying consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cost reimbursement overpayments have resulted in a balance due from NAFI as of June 30, 2020 in the
amount of $25,763. This amount has been reported as due from affiliate in the accompanying statement of
financial position and is expected to be paid within one year.

NAFI and affiliated corporations (NFIN, NFIVT, NAFICT and NFIM) may periodically make short term loans,
not to exceed one year, to its affiliated corporations, secured by documentation evidencing such
indebtedness. For the year ended June 30, 2020, there were no short term loan transactions with NFIN.

12
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors

NFI North. Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, in
accordance with the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (NFIN), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the NFIN's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
Internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of NFIN's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFIN's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NFIN's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the NFIN's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

September 30. 2020

14
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NFI NORTH, INC.
OFHCERS

Title Nome Address

President

Suanne Nader

Educator

Treasurer

Dellie Cbampagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative
—

Clerk/Secretary
Doug Giles
Retired Fire Fighter/Organic
Farmer

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name
Occupation Address

Doug Giles Retired Fire Fighter/Organic
Farmer

Suaime Nader Educator

Heidi Edwards

Dunn

Education & Communications

Director and Immediate Past

Board President, NFI North NH

Small Business Development
Center

Dellie

Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative
—

Lori Beaulieu Business Women

Margo Holmes Vice President Bangor Savings
Bank/Consumer Representative

Bruce Farcnwald CFO buncrafl Inc.

Demilria Kirby
Youtli Services Manager City
of Keene

Terms: Until successors are duly eleclcd and qualified. NOTE: No compensation for Members or
Directors As of: 4/13/2021

of 4/14/2021, 11:14 AN
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JANICE A. WILLIAMSON, BA

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS:
30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, the last 25 in management
and program administration.
B.A. in Sociology backed by professional development courses in human services
and management.
Graduate of U.S. Army Command and General Staff College.
Strong track record in developing and implementing training and support
programs.

Experienced in budget development/administration and grant writing.
Accustomed to representing agency/participant interests through public speaking
and personal representation.
Extensive experience in developing Individual Service Plans vocational
curriculums.

Extensive experience in developing Individual Educational Plans and alternate
school curriculums.

Extensive experience with administrative functions, including supervision of staff,
hiring, tenninations, staff development and evaluation.
Skillful in developing and managing contracts.
Adept at interpreting and ensuring program compliance with state and federal
regulations.
Adept at interpreting Special Education regulations and managing alternate
^special education schools.
Strong leadership qualities and proven willingness to accept responsibilities
demonstrated throughout civilian and military careers.
High level of self-initiative and resourcefulness in achieving managerial
objectives.
Adept at implementing and maintaining the Mental Illness Management Services
(MIMS).

EXPERIENCE AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS:

1998 to Present NFl NORTH, INC.

Regional Director
Responsible for overseeing the operations of all programs in my regioni. Provide
leadership, supervision, guidance and clinical support. Responsible for communicating all
policies and procedures, contract negotiations and development, fiscal planning and on-
call availability.

1994 to 1998 NFI NORTH, INC.

Program Director, North Country Shelter, Jefferson. NH
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Responsible for total operations of co-ed program for 15 NH court ordered youth and
over twenty five full-time staff. This included placement, counseling, treatment, special
education, and all HR functions.

1993 to 1994 NORTHERN NH DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES & MENTAL

HEALTH, Wolfeboro, NH
Residential Coordinator of lower Carroll County located at the Carroll County Mental
Health Center. Coordinate and implement all residential programs for individuals with a
mental illness. Responsible for all ISO/Enhance family care residential programs.
Responsible for all compliance with state and federal regulations.

1983 to 1992 COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL OF MERRIMACK COUNTY,
Concord, NH

Program Administrator of the Traumatic Brain Injury Residential Program and the
Vocational Training Program, both located at Franklin Falls Farm - 1989 to May 1992

•  Direct all aspects of rehabilitative services for brain-injured adults and
progressive vocational programming for the developmentally disabled. Oversee
two program managers and a staff of 18 residential and vocational trainers
providing services for a caseload of 30. Administer a $500,000 annual budget.
Developed a profitable small business program as a vocational training tool for
the developmentally disabled.
Established highly successful, non-traditional alternative vocational programs for
those in need of more comprehensive therapeutic programming.
Planned/supervised programming and staff involved in developing and delivering
three separate vocational training programs for the developmentally disabled and
mentally ill throughout central New Hampshire.
Directly involved in agency's receipt of $200,000 "Mobility Grant" for
developing the TBI program.
Established strong relations with other TBI programs nationwide.
Introduced the area's first vocational training program for the developmentally
disabled by establishing a day program at a local church hall.
Formulated and implemented all program models and management systems on
which the Franklin Falls Farm program was developed.
Implemented and coordinated services with outside therapists (speech,
occupational, physical and behavioral).
Supervised all job coaches and trainers.

1980 to 1983 LACONIA STATE SCHOOL AND TRAINING CENTER, Laconia, NH
Recreational Therapist

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

1978 to 1979 SAU #4, New Hampshire
Substitute Teacher for Middle-Secondary School
1977 to 1978 HOLBROOK SCHOOL, Holbrook, MA
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Substitute Teacher for Middle-Secondary School.

MILITARY EXPERIENCE:

1978 to 1998 UNITED STATES ARMY NATIONAL GUARD, Concord, NH
Demonstrated strong leadership and management abilities resulting in career progress
from the rank of Private to cun-ent rank of Lt. Colonel. Served as the Deputy Director of
Personnel overseeing a staff of 20 at the Stare level. One of New Hampshire's first two
female soldiers to graduate from Officer Candidate School. 1988 recipient of the NH
Army Commendation Medal for Outstanding Service. 1986 recipient of the Army
Commendation Medal for Meritorious Achievement. NH's 1985 Junior Officer of the

Year. 1993 recipient of the Meritorious Service Medal for Exceptional Meritorious
Service.

EDUCATION:

North Adams State College, North Adams, MA. B.A. in Sociology.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

1984 to Present Completion of many staff development workshops and seminars related
to direct care and management within human services.

1995 Facilitator/Trainer of Moderate Level Challenge Course.

1989 to 1993 U.S. ARMY GENERAL COMMAND AND STAFF COLLEGE,

Londonderry, NH Officers training in management, administration, counseling and
executive responsibilities.

1987 U.S. ARMY INSTITUTE FOR PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT, Newport
News, VA Advanced Management, leadership and administration.

1981 U.S. ARMY, Aberdeen^ MD - Officer Basic Course.
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■Tennifpif T.. Alfieri

Key Skills and Strengths
•Leadership - Adept at leading/managing cross-functional programs.
•Capable of leading high performing teams under tough deadlines, to meet expectations
of multiple stakeholders and other regulatory entities.
•Strong communication skills (verbal and written).
•Problem solver-Creativity and forethought in solving complex project issues.
•Organizational ability and multi-tasking skills.

Objective
To obtain a position that continues to enhance my skills and challenge further growth and
development while providing leadership to plan, direct and coordinate program
activities and key projects.

Education
Masters of Science, Clinical Mental Health Counseling, Plymouth State University,
Plymouth New Hampshire
Accredited by the Counsel for Accreditation of Counseling and Related Educational
Programs (CACREP) Graduation date, December I, of20l5. CPA 3.75
Bachelor of Science, Human Sen>ices/Counseling, Lyndon State College, 2002

Professional Experience
Program Director, NFI North Array of Senn'ces, Community Based Services. Jefferson
N.H. 2009-Presenl. Oversee the community based portion of the an'ay of services which
Includes, Individual Service option In-home, Individual Service option Foster Care,
Home Based Therapeutic Services and FAST Forward. Work with a team of people who
Provide diagnostic Assessment, outreach. Family Stabilization, Case Management, Care
Management, Wraparound, Respite Care, Parent Education, Support Seivices, Evidence
Based Models (such as TF-CBT, DBT, Supported Employment and many others).
Program Director, NFI North transitional housing. Maple Lodge. Bethlehem New
Hampshire. And Array ofSer\>ices, Community Based, January 2016-current.
Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentally ill adults. Included
a staff team of 10 + and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic
operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, ser\'ice/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing,
licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.
Intern, NFI North Transitional Housing—Concord January 2015-December 2015
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Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many groups to include; morning community
meeting, art therapy, wellness recovery actin plan, fitness, substance abuse, seeking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of
Consumers to include the NGRI status, incompetent to stand trial and sex offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders.
Program Director, NFI North Array ofServices. Davenport School and ISO Ser\>ices
2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based services for
emotionally disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and an annual budget.
Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake, discharge,
counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff,
record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.
Program Director, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Sen'ices, Bethlehem, N.H.-
2008-2009

Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed
adolescents. Included a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic
operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training and supervision of
stafT.

Assistant Program Director; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Sen'ices,
Bethlehem, N.H-June 2004-2008

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of
the program, including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual
counseling and crisis intervention.
Shift Supervisor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Sen'ices, Bethlehem, N.H.
January 2002-June 2004.
Responsible for the supervision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for
designated shift.
Residential Counselor; NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Sen'ices, Bethlehem,
N.H.-October 2000-January 2002.
Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential setting.
Includes tasks such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having
continuous contact with guardians.

Professional Development

■  NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has
developed an organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the
mental health needs of New Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g.,
bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)

■  PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
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The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of
School Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in
providing evidence-based resources and consultation related to school crisis
prevention and response. PREPaRE training is ideal for schools committed to
improving and strengthening their school safety and crisis management plans and
emergency response.

Certified training inJhe SOS Signs of Suicide Prevention Program
(SOS). It is a universal, school-based depression awareness and suicide
prevention program designed for middle-school (ages 11-13) or high-
school (ages 13-17) students.
Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) Coordinator for NFI North.
Responsible for PREA implementation, policy making and training of staff.
Agency trainer utilizing NFI North's curriculum 1 co-train staff on professional
boundaries, Treatment Intervention, Family systems, and documentation skills.
Also, designed and presented at NFI North's annual conference on 'Girls finding
their voice' and 'Marketing your services.'
Illness, Management and Recover)' Currently being trained and will obtain a 16
hour certification on this evidence based training.
Supported Employment 2 day certification
Medication training
Trauma Informed peer support training by SAMHSA one day training
developed for the National Center for Trauma Informed Care
PREA Coordinator for NFI North Array of Services responsible for
implementation to ensure PREA compliance to include policy, preparation for
federal audit and training all staff.
CADY (communities for alcohol and drug free youth) active panel member for
Grafton county's restorative justice expansion program.2013-current
Grant Awarded through the Building Bridges Initiative and Transition To
Permanency Project. Focused around Family Driven and Youth Guided
Treatment. 8/2010

Grant writing workshops, NFI, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services and
The North Country consortium.
Suicide Prevention Conference, YSPA ofNH.

Membership/Affiliation
Member of American Counseling Association (ACA)
Member of National counseling Association (NCC)
Certified as a Human Services- Board Certified Practitioner (HS-BCP) by the
Center of Credentialing and Education and the National Organization of Human
Services.

Inducted into Plymouth State University's Upsilon Pi, which is a chapter of Chi
Sigma lota (CSI), which is an international counseling honor society.
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Awards/Recognition
Scholarship Awarded through National Board for Certified Counselors to further
my education at Plymouth State University. Scholarship awarded was $5,000.00.
Nominated and selected as one of the 40 under fort>' recipients for New
Hampshire (2014).
Dr. Yitzhak Baka! Essence of Leadership award (2010)
Courage to Grow Award (2001)
Shining Star (2014).
Recognition for volunteering time to missions trips to Nicaragua (2006) and
Africa (2008.)

References

Noel Chipman. LICSW (Internship site super\'isor) 1 -603-229-3915
Charlene Nickerson. MSW (Social worker at the Federal Prison in Berlin) 1-603-
723-2509

Lora Abraham. LCSW, MBA (Director 11—Community health behavioral
services) 1 -315-798-8869 x231
Tara MacKillop. MS (Human Resources Consulting, Inc) 1-603-496-6332
Dr. Steven Flvnn. (Advisor at Plymouth State University) 1-603-535-3221
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

FINANCIAL EXPERTISE PROFILE

Financial Reporting •  A dynamic team leader who leverages positive energy, humor and

•  Cash and Credit Management keen intelligence to inspire, motivate, and guide team members to

•  Budget Creation and Analysis optimal success.

•  Payroll Management •  Respected financial professional, with a proven record of success

•  Strategic Planning driving operations for growth and maximizing cost efficiency.

•  Financial Training and •  Insightful and ethical MBA experienced with strategic planning for.

Management and management and analysis of, multi-million dollar budgets.

•  Accounts Payable and

Receivable

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

NFI, North, Inc., Contoocook, NH, FEBRUARY 2016 - PRESENT

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization's 18

million dollar annual operating budget in our sixteen programs across Maine and New Hampshire and managing a

staff of 5. Provides critical oversight over each aspect of financial operations including budget creation and

management.

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center at Community Council, Nashua, NH, DECEMBER 2015 -FEBRUARY 2016

INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization's 13

million dollar annual operating budget serving Hillsborough County and managing a staff of 10.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Provided program analysis to advise on future direction of resources.

•  Manage accounting and finance issues including monthly close, revenue recognition and analysis, policy

interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.

•  Consolidated business team to save approximately 18% of departmental personnel costs.

Star island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2009 - MAY 2015

FINANCE DIRECTOR

Reporting to CEO, principal financial leader responsible for overall financial management of the organization's 3.5

million dollar annual operating budget serving 4000 visitors annually. Manage 2 full time seasonal employees and

additional financial supervision of 5 seasonal employees.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Prepare and manage the annual budget and all financial reports as needed by the CEO, Finance Committee

and Board of Directors.

•  Manage accounting and finance issues.including monthly close. Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable,

policy interpretations, balance sheet reconciliations and daily productivity of all finances.
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KRISTI VAZIFDAR

•- Prepare financial statements and reporting for CEO, Finance Committee and Board of Directors; including
monthly reconciliation of revenues and expenses, with appropriate variation explanations and analysis.

•  Critically evaluate new, or renewal contracts and annual corporate insurance policies for appropriateness.

•  Key contributor of 3 year (2011 - 2013 and 2014 - 2016) strategic plans, authoring the financial tactics.

•  Developed and executed a weekly matrix to analyze payroll for 110 seasonal hourly staff to successfully keep
seasonal salaries under budget for the past three years saving $30,000 plus annually.

•  Introduced seasonal weekly budget meetings with Department Heads to share updated financial Information
and collaborate on seasonal budget management.

•  Created and implemented internal control and purchasing procedures.

•  Manage preparation and fieldwork for annual external audit process.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2004 - 2008

BUSINESS & FINANCE MANAGER

Promoted to-leadership role supporting all accounting and financial aspects of mainland and on island offices.

Key Accomplishments:

•  Created and implemented Finance Handbook as a guide for staff and Finance Committee.

•  Analyzed seasonal payroll and daily rate compensation structure, implemented time clocks to pay
nonexempt seasonal staff per hour saving 5% annually on seasonal payroll.

•  Leadership and day-to-day management of seasonal on island stores (book shop and lobby shop) purchased
all inventory, managed staff and all inventory controls.

•  Compile detailed information to prepare and submit regulatory filings for town, state, federal.

•  Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper revenue recognition.

•  Staff liaison to Finance Committee.

Star Island Corporation, Portsmouth, NH, 2000 - 2003

ACCOUNTANT

Hired to process Accounts Payable and Payroll reporting to the Executive Director

Key Accomplishments:

•  Assessed all accounting procedures and eliminated the need for external accounting firm.

•  Implemented cash management protocols to eliminate overdrafts and fees.

•  Researched, purchased and implemented new accounting software and revised General Ledger account
structure for efficiency.

•  Advised creation of Purchasing Agent position to consolidate staff workload and maximize productivity.

Wolf Coach Company (acquired by L3 Communications), Auburn, MA,
ACCOUNTANT, 1997 -1999

OFFICE ASSISTANT, 1995 - 1997
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COMPUTER SKILLS

Highly skilled in Excel, Proficient in MS Office including PowerPoint, Microsoft Dynamics Great
Plains and Management Reporter, Blackbaud Financial Edge, Fund EZ Accounting, Paychex

Paylink and Paychex Online Payroll, Apprentice level in Evolv and LWSI

Previous experience in QuickBooks Pro, and Peachtree Accounting {now Sage)

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT & VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Leadership Seacoast, Member Board of Directors June, 2015 - PRESENT;

Treasurer September, 2016 - PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast, Admissions Committee, 2014 - PRESENT

Leadership Seacoast, Program Graduate, 2013

4H, Judge for various competitions, 2013 - 2015

Barrington NH PTA 2011-2015

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire University

Graduate Certificate in Accounting, Southern New Hampshire University

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science, University of New Hampshire
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Luke Reynard, MBA

Executive team member with experience leading operations in behavioral health and disability
service systems.

NFI North. Inc.

Chief Operating Officer April 2021-Present

Responsible for daily operations of all agency programs
Lead and supervise all strategic plan operations
Collaborate with Executive Leadership team on strategic initiatives and operational processes
Communicate with the CEO and Board of Directors on agency goals and initiatives
Represent NFI North with state partners and the general public
Oversee new business development and strategic opportunities
Oversee relationships with vendors, subsidiaries, and partners

University of New Hampshire

Director of Operations, Center for START Services, Institute on Disability, July2019-Apr 2021

Operational leadership for START Mental Health and Intellectual Disability Program
Develop and implement strategic operating plans to align with UNH goals
Develop programmatic cost projection proposals for various state government systems
Member of the Institute on Disability at University of New Hampshire management team
Research and identify opportunities to leverage state and federal Medicaid and MCO
funds forprogrammatic use

My Health Mv Resources fMHMR) of Tarrant Countv

Chief Operating Officer of Disability Services

2005 through 2019

May 2017-June 2019

Chief Operations Officer for Disability Services, leading services to 4000+ people with
disabilitiesmonthly

Develop strategic operating plans to achieve agency mandates
Responsible for daily operations and supervision of 500 full-time staff
Responsible for oversight for state funded Authority Operations
Responsible for operation of Provider function operations, including HCBS programs and ICF
homes

Develop and oversee $30 million annual operations budget, including 20M+ in Medicaid funds
Lead development team and supervise first crisis Intervention and prevention program in
Texas:expanded contract across the state for further implementation

o Award winner for Special Services to the START National Team
Establish cost analysis of program operations resulting in net operational increase of
revenuesexceeding 1M
Oversight of Housing Grants, Supported Employment Operations, and Shelter Plus Care Programs
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•  Oversight of programs funded through Health Human Services Commission, Office of the
Govemorand Center for Medicaid Services 1115 Waiver

Senior Program Director of Disability Services 2012-17

Program Director 2011-12

Program Manager 2010-11

Program Specialist 2009-10

Service Coordination 2005-09

Education

Master of Business Administration

Bachelor of Arts In Psychology
•  Minor-Criminal Justice

Community Leadership

University of Texas-Permian Basin

Texas State University

Nevtr Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Workforce Development Leadership Team
•  State

Leadership Fort Worth, Class of 2016
•  Community engagement leadership development course designed to foster civic leadership

skillsand education opportunities

Samaritan House Board of Directors

•  Board member providing support for non-profit providing support services and residential
support to individuals with HIV/AIDS, Mental Illness, and other specialneeds

MH Housing Development of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for the property management organization providing housing

supports toindividuals with mental illness

IDD Council of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for non-profit community group with a mission of increasing awareness,

promotinginclusion and providing education about disabilities in the community

IDD Directors Consortium

•  Member of statewide leadership group of 39 Community Centers charged with policy
advisementand stakeholder response for more than 50,000 people with disabilities in Texas

Texas Health and Human Services STAR Kids Workgroup
•  Member legislatively appointed group charged with providing policy design for newly

implementedManaged Care platform for 180,000 children with disabilities in Texas

YMCA Soccer, Basketball, Baseball Coaching Volunteer

Henniker Youth Athletics, Assistant Coach

2013-2018

2019-present

Luke Reynard
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Paul L. Dann, Ph.D.

EMPLOYMENT

Jan. 1993-

present

Sept. 1997-
Present

NFl North, Contoocook NH

Executive Director

Responsible for the overall management of this private non-profit
corporation with a total annual budget of 26+ million dollars. Over the
past 27 years lead at team that grew the organization from one program
and four employees to twenty-six services and 350 employees across two
states. Developed key programs and services to address the needs of
children, youth, families, adults and seniors across the life continuum
within a diverse array of seiwices. Worked successfully with the Board of
Directors, agency management, business staff, and external stakeholders
to insure corporation's fiscal and programmatic excellence. Provided
regular consultation and training to private and public human service
organizations.

New England College, Henniker, NH

Program Director MS CMHC and Part Time Faculty
From March of 2016 until March of 2020 1 ran the Masters of Science in

Clinical Mental Health Counseling and the Masters of Science in Human
Services. During this time, 1 grew the program from 14 to 88 students. 1
continue to teach in the program as well as in the Masters in Computer
Information Systems, Masters in Business and Master's in Business
Administration. Developed. During this time, I developed numerous
courses, taught on campus, through hybrid learning as well as online.
Strong ability to use technology in class as well as within online
platfomts. Excellent reviews from students as well as administration. I
facilitate and oversee student capstones as well as super\'ise primary
research in the graduate school. Past member of the curriculum
committee, strategic planning committee and graduate council.

Sept. 1991
Jan. 1993

NORTH AMERICAN FAMILY INSTITUTE - Danvers, Massachusetts

Director of Children and Family Services
Responsible for the overall management of children and family services
for a large nationally based non-profit human service agency. Developed
a cadre of programs serving New Hampshire, Maine and Northern
Massachusetts. Directly responsible for oversight of agency supervisors,
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project development, contract negotiation, training and fiscal operations.
Developed core management training for project directors, wrote
proposals resulting in the addition of new projects, developed new and
innovative services in the area of wrap around, therapeutic foster care,
home based services and residential treatment.

April 1980 - NORTHEASTERN FAMILY INSTITUTE - Danvers, MA
Sept. 1991

Agency Supervisorfor Adolescent Services (3/87 - 9/9J)
Promoted to this key management position. Responsible for program
supervision, program development, and overall agency management
functions including facility siting, community acceptance, facility
licensing, fleet management, fiscal management and contract negotiations
with various funding sources. Directly responsible for the operations of
six projects representing a combined budget of $3.4 million. Additional
responsibilities include the provision of training and support for other
agency projects.

Program Director - North Crossing (12/83 - 3/87)
Promoted to develop and manage a residential school for

youth with serious emotional disturbance. Developed this accredited
school from the proposal stage to full operation. Provided training and
support to other agency projects as well as the State of Vermont within the
areas of program development and staff training. In February of 1985
promoted to supervise 2 additional youth serving programs.

Pre-Scrccncr - Crisis Intervention Services (9/83 - 6/86)
Worked as part of a mobile crisis intervention team. Provided crisis
intervention services throughout five communities on an open referral
basis. Worked with area services, police and community members to
provide pre-screening for voluntary and involuntary psychiatric
hospitalization, mental status exams, crisis management, referral and
consultation. Provided community presentations on the topics of mental
health and program services.

Program Director - Community Living Project and Adolescent Day
Program (4/81 -12/83)
Managed 2 mental health programs, a residence and day treatment
program. Designed, organized, staffed and supendsed a treatment
program that achieved a high degree participant success rate. Obtained
contract funding from an additional state agency and from the state of
Vermont. Consulted to agencies in the states of Maryland and New
Hampshire on the development and management of community-based
treatment.

Caseworker - Foster Care Program (4/80 - 4/81)



DocuSign Envelope ID: 64O8AD09-A7FD-4E36-9852-6193BAA888FC

Managed a caseload of adolescents committed to the Department of Youth
Services. Provided ongoing counseling and advocacy within the courts
and community. Developed a group activity component.

EDUCATION

2004 - 2008 Ph.D. in Human and Organizational Development
Fielding Graduate University

2004-2006 M.A. in Human and Organizational Systems, Fielding Graduate
University.

1981 - 1983 Earned 30 credits toward a Master of Education in Human Service

Management, Boston University.

1975 - 1979 Bachelor of Science in Human Seivice with High Honors,
Northeastern University, Dean's List 1975-1979.

OTHER RELATED EXPERIENCE

Part Time Faculty, UNH Masters in Public Administration 2014-present
Board Member New Hampshire Association for the Blind, 2012 to 2016
Institute for Social Innovation Research Fellow 2010 to 2014

Don Bushnell Scholarship Award for Organizational and Social Change 2007
Vice Chair Board of Managers Community Provider Network 2003-2006
Secretary Board of Managers Community Provider Network 1999-2003
Board Member Havenwood Heritage Heights, Chair Planning Committee 2002, Vice
President of the Board of Directors 2006, President Board of Director 2008-2011

Board Member Maine Alliance for Addition and Mental Health Services 2001 -present
Leadership NH class of 2001
President Hopkinton Independent School Board of Directors 1999-2009
Former Massachusetts Licensed Social Worker - Lie. # 300178

Clinician, Northeastern Family Center, Melrose Ma. 1988-1989
Consultant, NECMHS, Amesbury, Ma. 1988-1990
Trainer, Community Programs Innovations 1986-1993

TRAININGS, WORKSHOPS AND PRESENTATIONS (partial list)

Snilnnovation, Employee Engagement and Performance Management
Connections for Kids Leadership Retreat 2017

Leadership Development Seminar
NFI North six session leadership training 2017, 2018, 2019
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Connecting the Dots: Mental Health and the Opioid Crisis in New Hampshire
New England College 2017

The Resiliency Factor: Our Role in Advancing Child and Youth Well Being-
Keynote Speaker
Child and Family Provider Network Annual Conference 2016

High Impact Leadership
NAFI National Conference 2016

Working Alliance: The Building Blocks for Ensuring Successful Outcomes
Child and Family Provider Network Annual Conference 2016

Leading with Vision Across and Within the Organization
Senior Leadership Conference Alliance for Strong Children and Families 2015

Cultural Foundations in Mental Health Practice

NFI North Core Training 2015

Conscious Organizations; Stories and Practices from the. Nonprofit and For Profit
Sector

International Leadership Association Global Conference 2014

Supervision, Management and Leadership; Cross currents within the normative
community
Rhode Island Psychological Centers 2014

Workplace Diversit>' and Inclusion
Human Resource Association of Greater Concord 2013

Cultural Diversity
Merrimack County House of Corrections 2013

Generative Leadership
Tobias Leadership Institute 2012

Emergent Leadership in Nonprofit Organizations
Senior Leadership Conference ACF 2012

Leadership Development

NAFI National Conference 2011

Generative Leadership: Exploring Leadership Development Within Organizations
and Teams
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Senior Leadership Conference 2011

Social and Cultural Cultural Diversity in the Classroom
NEC Faculty Development Workshop 201 1

Working Alliance within the Classroom
Contoocook School Summer 2008

Leadership Development Seminar
NFl Leadership Development Program Spring/Summer 2008

Behavior Management
NFI North Core Training 2007

Meaning Making within Organizations
NFI North Leadership Professional Development 2006
Reintegrative Services for Youth
DCYF annual Conference 2006

Difficult People and Conflict Management
DCYF Annual Conference 2006

The Role of Story Telling in Leadership
NAFI National Conference 2003

COURSES TAUGHT

New England College Graduate and Continuing Studies

Masters in Health Care (all three credit courses)

•  Structure of Social Problems

•  Long Tenn Care

•  Health Care Management

Masters in Community Mental Health Counseling (three to four credit
courses)

• Mental Health Management
• Multicultural Issues in Mental Health Delivery
•  Career Development and Counseling
•  Research Methods

•  Capstone Facilitation

Masters in Business Administration
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Strategic Planning and Policy
Organizational Management and Leadership
Organizational Communication, Negotiation and Conflict Resolution
Strategic Capstone
Organizational Leadership and Change

Masters in Health Care Management

•  Dynamics of Nonprofit Governance

University of New Hampshire

Masters in Public Administration

• Organization and Management in the Public and Nonprofit Sector
•  Effective Change Management

References A vailahle on Request
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Paul Dann Executive Director $217,804 0 0

Luke Reynard Chief Operating Officer $138,000 0 0

K-risti Vazifdar Chief Financial Officer $120,000 0 0

Jan Williamson Regional Director $127,000 15% $19,050

Jennifer Altieri Program Director $80,000 100% $80,000
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Lori A. Sblbiaettc

CoDnUtJentr

Kalja & Fo>
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603.271.9544 1.S00.8S2.3345 CxL 9544

Fax: 603.2710332 TDD Access: 1.800-735-2964 www.dhhs.Qb.gov

May 15, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. SunUnu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI. North, inc. (Vendor
#177575-8001). PO Box 417. 40 ParR Lane, Contoocook, NH 03229 for the provision of Care
Management Entity services for the FAST Forward program, by Increasing the price iimltalion by
$1,515,000 from $937,160 to $2,452,160 and by exteriding the completion date from June 30,
2020 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and Coundi approval, wtiichever Is later. The
original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017. Item #39B and most
recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 20, 2018, item #20.100%
General Funds.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if
needed and justified.

05-95-92-921010-2053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUfVIAN

SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM
OF CARE

State

Ffacat

. Year

Class/

Account ■ .
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Arriount

Revised

Budget

2018 . 072-609073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000 $0 $6,000

. 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $91,160 $0 $91,160

2019 102-500731. ' Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $420,000 SO $420,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $420,000 $365,000 $785,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $0 $1,150,000 $1,150,000

Total $937,160 $1,515,000 $2,452,160



His Excellency; Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is adding hew scope requirements
to.the.contract for oversight of psychiatric care and residential treatment. Further, this action adds

jysars of additional renewal options to the contract The Contractor is uniquely qualified to
provide these services as Senate Bill 14, of the 2019 Regular Legislation Session, amended RSA
135;F to require a Care Management Entity to provide this oversight for the State, and NFI North
is the only Care Management Entity in the State. NFI North has provided exemplary service
throughout this contract and beyond. The values and principles that NFI North operates under
are In direct alignment with the values and principles outlined in the requirements for the
Department under RSA 135;F. As previously stated, the original contract was approved by
Governor and Council on" June 21, 2017, item #39B. It was then subsequently amended wrth
Govemor and Council approval on Septemt)er 20, 2018, item #20.

The purpose of this amendment is to expand the existing scope of services to Include
enrollment and payment for non-Medicaid children arid youth in the FAST Forward program,
oversight of children and youth in a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for the FAST
Forward program and indusion of an increased budget to accommodatia the Increased
erirollment, and acceptance of referrals for children, youth and families who are involved with the
Division of Children, Youth and Families and have an open couh case.

Despite the best Intentions and hard work of families and providers, services are often
fragmented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire Is making great progress in addressirig
these challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program called FAST Forward. The
FAST Forward program is designed to serve youth with serious emotional disturbances and their
families, whose heeds are not met by traditional service streams and programs. This is done by
utilizing a, high fidelity wraparound approach that is a definable, individualized, and strengths-
based planning process that incorporates a child ia'nd family, team, and results In a unique set of
services and supports for the child or youth and their family. The treatment plan is dosely

. monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes.

Qualifying children and youth are those who are. eligible for Medicaid aged five (5) through
hventy-one (21), experiencing difficulties in day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of serious emotional
disturbances, and at risk of multi-agency involvement. Approximately 325 individuals and
approximately 1100 more family members will be served from July 1, 2020 to June 30. 2021.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficulties In day-to-
day life, due to serious emotional disturbances and face challenges finding the appropriate
supports when needed. Children and youth are often placed out of the home in residential
treatment facilities, psychjatric hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, or daytime programs. Many of
these placements take the children and youth put of their local schools and communities.

The. Department wll monitor contracted services using the. following performance
measures;

•  The Contractor must ensure that the Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS)
assessment tool is used with psychiatric oversight and FAST Forward eng^ements with
95% of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families. -

•  The Contractor must ensure that the Youth Progress Scale (YPS) and Team Meeting
Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 80% of engaged

■  children/youth/young adults and their families. '
. • The Contractor must ensure that FAST Forward plans of care are completed with 100%

of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families.
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As referenced In Exhibit C>1 of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. One (1) year of
renewal was utilized in Amendment #1 of the contract. The Department is exercising its option to
renew services for one (1) of the one (1) year available. The Department is also adding an
additional three (3) years of renewal through this Amendment #2.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families v^h
children and youth who have serious emotional disturbances may have fewer services available
to them in their communities to meet the challer^es that are presented by mental illness. Further.
DHHS may be out of compliance with.RSA 135:F.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submlttj

ori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Dtporlmenlcf Health and Human Seruictt' M'mion is to join commu/itiics and fomilies _
i/t prouidini opportuniLie* for cirizerttf to achieve health and-independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doil

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

May 19, 2020

Lori A. Shibinenc, Commissioner

Department of Health and Hunian Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinette:

. This leiler reprcscnls fomial notification that the Department of Infonnaiion Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend a contract with NFI North, Inc. of Conioocopk, NH as
described below and referenced as DolT No! 2018-069B.

The purpose of this amendment is to expand the existing scope of services to include enrollment
and payment for non-Medicaid children and youth in the FAST Forward program, oversight of
children and youth In a psychiatric hospital, increased enrollment for the FAST Forward program
and inclusion of an increased budget to accommodate the increased enrollment, and acceptance of
referrals for children, youth and families who are involved with the Division of Children, Youth
and Families and have an open court case.

This amendment increases the price limitation by $1,515,000 from $937,160 to $2,452,160 and
extends the completion date from June 30,2020 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and
Council approval.

A copy, of this letter should .accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. ' . ,

x

Sincere!)'] ' .

Denis Goulet.

DG/ik

DolT #20"18-069B

cc: Michael Williams, IT .Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward Contract

This 2^ Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward contract (hereinafter
referred to as 'Amendnient #2*) Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and .NFI North. Inc..
(hereinafter referred to as 'Ihe Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at PO Box
417, 40 Park Lane, Contoccook, NH 03229.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item #39B) as arhended on September 20, 2018 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended
and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS. Ihe State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payrhent
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

\A^EREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit 0*1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the terrn of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;
. June 30. 2021..

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;
■  $2,452,160.'

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White.-'Dlrector.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1:10, Stale Agency Telephone Number, to read;
603-271-9631.

5. .Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services Amendment #1 by replacing In its entirety with'Exhibit A
Amendment #2. Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

6. Modify Exhibit B,. Amendment #1 Methods and Conditions Precederit to Payment, by replacing
it in its entirety with Exhibit B Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
yvhich is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit B-3. SFY 2020 Budget, by replacing In its entirety with Exhibit 8-3 Amendment
#2. SFY 2020 Budget. >^ich is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

I  8. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2, SFY 202TBudgel. which Is attached hereto and Incorporated
' by reiference herein,

9. Add Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2,' which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein'.

NFI North. Inc. Amendmenl U2 Contractor Initials.

RFp.20lft-OBH-02-CAREM-A02 Page 1 of 4 Data .3 /



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

10. Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Provisions. Section 3., to read;
The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to three (3) additional years
after the amended contract completion date of Jitne 30, 2021. subject to the continued
availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

NFI North, Irtc. Amondmenl02 Contractor Initisls
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N9W Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forvtrard

AJI terms condttions.of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent wltti this Amendment
#2 remain In full force erxJ effect. This amerxlment shall be effective upon the date of Ooverrw and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written be\ow,

5/1/2020

Oete

State of New Hampshire
Oepartment of Health and Human Services

Name: CiOrytJ/, _

NFI North. Inc.

'j / f

Name: Karen E. Cusano. f\^. Ed.
Title: Chief Operating Officer ■

NFI North. Inc.

RFp.20l8.DBH-02-CAReM-A02

Amendmsni «2

P«g» 3 of 4

Contractor Inillal

Dale^Sil^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Cere Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance,
end execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date fme:
itle;

1 hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council
of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE.'

Date Name:
Title;

NFI North, inc. Amendment »2 Cbhlfocior Initial?.
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Now Hampohlre Dopertment of Heatth and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment 02

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure

' meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1:2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subre.cipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure that all sen/ices provided to children, youth, and
families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
culturally and linguistically competent, and com'munity based.

1.5. The Contractor must provide Care Management Entity services, statewide, for
families with children, youth or young adults ages five (5) through age twenty-
one (21) years who have Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED) and who are
enrolled Iri the FAST Forward program as required by NH RSA 135-F;4, Duties
of Commissioner of the Department of Health & Human Services
(http://gencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/)^135-f/135-f-mrg'.htm).

1.6. The Contractor must work collaboratively with the children, youth, and families
enrolled in the FAST Forward program, as well as service providers, in the
process of assessing each family member's capabilities and challenge areas In
order to. develop supports and interventions that: ^

1.6.1. Are.effective; . -

1.6.2. Are individualized; and . . ' ■ ^

1.6.3. Acknowledge the strengths of the family. .

1.7. For the purposes of the resulting agreement, the System of Care core principles
are defined as:

1.7.1. Being Family Driven'and Youth Driven.

1.7.2. Coordinating and delivering Community-Based Services.

1.7.3. Being Culturally and Lihguisticaify Competent:

1.7.4. Providing Trauma-informed Care.

1.8. The Contractor must accept all referrals received from the Department:

NFl North. Inc. Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampehire Department of Heatth and Human Servlcee
Care Managqmont Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment 02

1.9. The Contractor must work with several service providers that provide support
for children, youth, young adults and their families, when applicable including,
but not limited to:

1.9.1. Community Mental Health Centers, which include:*

1.9.1.1. Monadnock Farhlly Services

1.9.1.2. Community Partners

1.9.1.3. Seacoast Mental Health

1.9.1.4. Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

1.9.1.5. Great Nashua Mental Health Center

1.9.1.6. West Central Behavioral Health

1.9.1.7. Lakes Region Mental Health Center

1.9.1.8. Northern Human Services

1.9.1.9. Center for Life Management

1.9.1.10. Rivert>end Community Mental Health

1.9.2. Peer Support Agencies.

1.9.3. School districts.

1.9.4. Farhity resource centere.

1.9.5. Other Care Management entities contracted with DHHS.

'' 1.10. The Contractor must comply with all provisions listed in this coritract as well as
all applicable Department policies and procedures, including the Fast Fonvard
Program Manual as provided by the Department.

K  ' . '

1.11. The Contractor must have a data system that meets the federal requirem'ents.of
the Health Insurance Porlability and Accountability Act (HIP>^) and has the
ability to bill Medicaid.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. FAST Forward Program

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide Care Management Entity services for
children, youth, and young adults (ages five (5) to twenty-one (21)) with
Severe Emotional Disturbances (SEO) who meet eligibility criteria for, or
are enrolled in. the FAST Forward program, and their families,
statewide, in accordance with the Department's FAST Forward Program
Policy and Practice Manual, as provided by the Department, and as it
may be amended. Activities include, but are not limited to: .

2.1.1.1. Family and youth peer support services.

2.1.1.2. Provision of customized goods and services.

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit A Amendment <!I2 Conlracto; Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
Care Management Entity Services

■ Exhibit A Amendment #2

2.1.1.3. Individual Service Options (ISO) in-home services.

2.1.1.4. Wraparound services provided through Wraparound
Coordinators in accordance with the NH Wraparound Model and
System of Care core values, which include:

2.1.1.4.1. Being Family Driven and Youth Driven.

2.1.1.4.2. Coordinating Community-Based Services.

2.1.1.4.3. Being Culturally and Linguistically Competent.

2.1.1.4.4. Providing Trauma-informed Care.

2.1.2. The Contractor must work collabpratively with' any other Care
Management Entity contracted with the Department in an effort to
maintain continuity of care for children, youth and young adults as well
as their families, in areas regarding:

2.1.2.1. Regional coverage of FAST Forward services.

2.1.2.2. Instances of the child, youth, or yoiing adult and the family
relocating to another covered region.

2.1.2.3. Instances of acute psychiatric hospitalization becoming a
medical necessity for a child, youth, or young adult.

2.1.2.4. Instances, of a system level collaboration being necessary due
to a child, youth, or young adult experiencing high-risk needs.

2.1.3. The Contractor miust provide Intensive In-Home services which may
include Individual Services Options (ISO) In-home services, .iri
accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-C 6339. which
include, but are not limited to:

2.1.3.1. Crisis support.

2.1.3.2. Intensive behavioral supports

2.1.3.3. Planned and emergency respite.

2.1.4. The Contractor must adniinister evaluation tools in order to conduct

assessments, as required by the Department, which include, but are not
limited to: ■ . ■

2.1.4.1. The Youth Progress Rating Scale (YPS), also known as
outcome rating scale (ORS), which Is.a quantitative youth and
family self^report survey. The Contractor must ensure:

2.1.4.1.1. Responses are reviewed by the FAST Fonvard
Coordinator.

2.1.4.1.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record..

NFI North. Inc Exhibit A Amendment 02 Conirector Initials
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Care Management Entity Servicea

Exhibit A Amendment 02

2.1.4.1.3. The. original responses are forwarded to the FAST
Forward Program Manager.

2:1.4.2. The Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS), which is a survey of
the family and youth administered at the conclusion of each
Wraparound Team Meeting. The Contractor must ensure:

2.1.4.2.1. Responses are reviewed by the FAST Forward
Coordinator.

2.1.4.2.2. A copy of the responses are maintained in the family's
case record.

2.1.4.2.3. The original, responses are fon^arded to the FAST.
Forward Program Manager.

2.1.4.3. The Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool,
which must be completed and reviewed upon beginning services
and at a minimum of every three (3) months to measure the
child, youth, of young adult and family's needs and strengths.
The Contractor must:

2.1.4.3.1. Complete the CANS assessment when it is not
completed by the child, youth, or young adult's
clinician.

2.1.4.3.2. Ensure a copy of the assessment is maintained in the
farnily's case record.

2.1.4.3.3. Provide the original assessment to the FAST Forward
Program Manager .

2.1.5. The^ Contractor must ensure case documents are available to the
.. . Department in order that a Document Review Measure (DRM), which is

a review of case fill content, can be completed by. the FAST Forward
Program Manager.

2.2. Residential Treatment Oversight

2.2.1. In an effort to provide a continuity of care for children, youth and young,
adults who require residential treatment in order to have successful and
timely transitions, the Contractor shall provide residential, treatment
oversight wheri instructed by the Department.

.2.2.2. The.Contracto> shall work collaboratlvely with DHHS and any other Care
Management Entity coritracted by the Department in an effort to
maintain continuity of care for children, youth, and young adults who
require residential treatment and to ensure statewide coverage., and in
areas regarding:

2.2.2.1. Regional coverage of FAST. Forward services.

NFI North, Inc. Exhibit A Amendment 02 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Departmont of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services .

Exhibit A Amendment #2

2.2.2.2. Instances of child/youth/young adult and family relocations into
another covered region.

2.2.2.3. Instarices of child/youth/young adult meeting medical necessity
for acute psychiatric hospitalization.

2.2.2.4., Instances of child/youth/young adult experiencing high-risk
needs that require a system level collaboration.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide residential treatment
oversight within ninety (90) days of the contract effective date to:

2.2.3.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with minimizing the length
of stay in the residential treatment facility.

2.2.3.2. Ensure successful transitions back to the community.

2.2.4. the Contractor shall accept referrals for residential treatment oversight
services, through DHHS approval, from:

2.2.4.1. Hospitals.

2.2.4.2. Managed Care Organizations,(MCO).

2.2.4.3. Other behavioral health providers.

2.2.5. The Contractor shall ensure residential treatment oversight services
.  Include, but are not limited to:

2.2.5.1. .Discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets the
.  needs of the child, youth, or young adult and their family.

2.2.5.2. Ensuring family and youth voice and choice is central during
treatrhent.

2.2.5.3. Ensuring treatrnent plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
.  ̂ individual needing residential treatment services.

2.2.5.4. Ensuring discharge plans are reflective of the appropriate level
of carefpr the child, youth, or young adult; are realistic; and are
achievable.

". 2.2.5.5. Attending all pertinent treatment team meetings at the residential
treatment facility and advocating for the child, youth, or young
adult and their family.

2.2.5.6. Providing coordination for any referrals for services that vyill be
needed to support the transition of the child, youth, or young
adult from a residential treatment back to the family home.

2.2.5.7. Referring the family to supportive services in their communities,
which may. Include but are not limited to family peer support
groups.

NFI North, Inc. . Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services

Exhibit A Amendment U2

2.2.5.8. Assisting the family with applying for Medicaid coverage, as
applicable and needed.

2.2.5.9. Providing documentation, if applicable, for the child, youth, or'
young adult who has court-involvement, in accordance with NH
Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 169-8:19 or RSA 169-D:19.

2.2.5.10. If discharging a child, youth, or young adult to the home or
community based placement, the treatment recommendations
are attainable within the community and the home setting by the
caregiver.

2.2.6. For any child/youth/young adult enrolled in the CME or FAST Forward
through the Contractor, who has an open Division for Children. Youth,

, and Families (DCYF) case (Child Protective Services (CPS) or Juvenile
Justice System (J JSj) and is involved in the court system, the Contractor
shall:

2.2.6.1. Provide results of the Children and Adolescent Needs and
Strengths (CANS) assessment and the Plan of Care (ROC) to

. the court.

2.2.6.2. Provide any recommendation for treatment and supportive
services that will benefit the child, youth or young adult to the
court.

2.2.6.3. Provide progress reports to the court in accordance with court
hearings for each child, youth and young adult.

2.2.7. The Contractor shall ensure all reports and plans of care submitted for
court review'are:

2.2.7.1. Submitted in accordance.wlth RSA 169-B 5a, RSA 169-C 12-b'
and RSA 169-D4-a, with copies forwarded tp the assign^ Child
Protective Service Worker and all other appropriate parties.

2.2.7.2. Clear, understandable and free of jargon.

2.2.8.', The Contractor shall work with the Department and other stakeholders
to:

2.2.8.1. Develop outcome measures for children, youth and young adults
who utilize residential treatment.

2.2.8.2. Incorporate the outcome measures into the Contractor's
evaluation plan of targeted residential treatment levels of care.

2.3. Psychiatric Hospitalization Oversight .

2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitalization oversight for
children, youth and young adults admitted to an acute psychiatric
hospital who need assistance to successfully transition to a .family home

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit A Amendment 02 Contractor IniUats
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New Hampehlro Department of Health and Human Sorvlcee
Care Management Entity Servlcea

Exhibit A Amendments

or residential care in a timely manner^ as defined by the family and by
medical necessity.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall provide psychiatric hospitalization oversight
services to ensure family and youth voice and choice are present during
treatments and that treatments are relevant to the issue that led to the

hospitalization. The Contractor shall:

2.3.2.1. Attend all treatment team meetings at the hospital in which the
child or youth is receiving services.

2.3.2.2. Ensure discharge and transition planning is realistic and meets
the needs of iHe family.

2.3.2.3. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home, if discharging to the home.

2.3.2.4. Ensure discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care -

2.3.2.5. Coordinate referrals for services and supports needed to support
the individual's transitions

. 2.3.1 The Contractor must prioritize oversight for children, youth and young
adults who:

2.3.3.1. Do not achieve the goal of timely discharge or transition based
upon clinical necessity.

2.3.3.2. Have rapid or chronic re-admissions that do not go beyond
clinical necessity but are frequent in nature.

2;3.4. The Contractor must work with the Department and hospital to assess
instances where the child, youth or young adult may benefit from
oversight, but may not meet the criteria as stated in Paragraph 2.3.3,
which may include but are not limited to: ..

2.3.4.1. Involuntary versus voluntary hospitalization.

2.3.4.2. Multirsystem Involvement.

2.3.5. The Contractor shall ensure the ability to provide psychiatric
hospitalization oversight no later than ninety (90) days from the contract
effective dale in order to:

2.3.5.1. Assist the child, youth, or young adult with mjhtmizing the length
of stay in the psychiatric hospital.

2.3.5.2. Ensure successful, transitions to residential treatment facilities or
back to the communities.

2.3.6. The Contractor shall accept referrals from the other Care Management
Entity (CME) for psychiatric hospitalization oversight services, when the
other CME has a conflict, or for Instances when continuity of care will
take priority.

NFI North. Inc. Exhibit A Amefxlmenl #2 Conlractof
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2.3.7. The Contractor shall ensure that psychiatric oversight services Include,
but are not limited to;

2.3.7.1. Discharge and transition planning that is realistic and meets the
need of the child, youth, or young adult and their family.

2.3.7.2. Ensuring the child, youth, or young adult-and their family's voice
and choice Is present during treatment.

2.3.7.3. Ensuring treatment plans are relevant to the issue that led to the
hospitalizatlon. '

.  2.3.7.4: Ensuring discharge plans reflect the appropriate level of care;
are realistic; and are achievable.

2.3.7.5. Ensuring that the child, youth, or young adult is assessed for the
need of residentialtreatment. when indicated.

2.3.7.6. Assisting the hospital with referrals to an assessor for resideritial
treatment if necessary.

2.3.7.7. Ensuring treatment recommendations are attainable within the
community and the home when discharging to the home.

2.3.7.6. Attending all treatrrient team meetings at the hospital and
. advocating for the child, youth or young adult and their family's
needs.

2.3.7.9. 'Providing support and coordinating referrals for services and'
supports needed fortransitioning the child, youth or young adult.

2.3.7.10. Connecting the family to supportive services in the community,
which may include, but is not limited to family peer support
groups.

2.3.7.11. Assisting the family with applying for Medicaid coverage, as
applicable and needed.

2.4. Evaluatiori and Site Review

2.4.1. The Contractor shall develop an evaluation team that provides
.  assistance with:

2.4.1.1. Obtaining data from.any contracted care management entity.

2.4.1.2. Understanding and sharing evaluative data with.the Department
and any other care management entity of children, youth and
young adults and their families who are served within the System

.  of Care in order.toenhance the ability to communicate outcomes
to the Departnrient and other System of Care stakeholders in
alignment with RSA 135:F. System of Care for Children's Mental
Health.

NFI North. Inc. Exhibil A Amendment #2 Contractor Inilials
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2.4.2. The Contractor shall ensure the evaluation team provides information
that includes, but is not limited to: .

2.4.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes and de-identified and aggregate
client- level data from sources referenced by the Department.

2.4.2.2. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for
Department use. which may include but is not limited to:

2.4.2.2.T. Service Utilization Data.

2.4.2.2.2. Number of youth remaining in the community
compared to the number of youth-needing to access
residential treatment.

2.4.2.2.3. Length of stay in residential treatment outcomes and
reporting

2.4.3. The Contractor shall ensure that a leadership team with a minimum of
three (3) members participates in the Department's annual site review
process which includes, but is riot limited to:

2.4.3.1. , Review/ing program services for twenty percent (20%) of
participants served annually for compliance, with all items
outlined in the agreement, which includes, but Is not limited to:

2.4.3.1.1. Eligibility and re-ellglbility assessments.

2.4.3.1.2. Plan of care.

. 2.4.3.1.3. Persoii Centered Planning practices.

2.4.3.1.4. Conflict of-interest issues.

2.4.3.1.5. Setting requirements.

2.4.3.1.6. Provider qualincatiohs.

2.4.3.2. Collaborating with the Departrrient regarding areas requiring
improvement as a result of the site review, which include, but are
not be limited to, creating a plan that outlines the activities for
improvement no more than thirty (30) days after the site review.

2.4.3.3. Collaborating with the Department to implement the plan for
improvement In subparagraph 2.4.3.2 and reporting on all
related activities until evidence of improvement is achieved.

2.4.3.4. Providing review of documentation arid outcome data.

2.4.3.5. Conducting anonymous survey questionnaires for children,
youth and young adults as well as their families.

2.4.3.6. Providing the results of the survey questionnaires to the
Department.

NFI North. Inc. ExhiWl AAmonOmenl ContrecJorlnitiab

RFA.2020-08H-02-CAREM-01-A02 PagoSoMI OataS'/lo
Rov.09/06/18 -



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Managemimt Entity Setvicee

Exhibit A Amendrhent #2

2:4.3.7. Ensuring availability of interviews with entities that may include,
but are not limited to:

2.4.3.7.1. Children, youth and young adults as well as their
families.

2.4.3.7.2. Wraparound Coordinators.

.  2.4.3.7.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

2.4.3.7.4. Program Director.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit"quarterly reports on program services provided,
ensuring data is de-identified and in the aggregate, including but not limited to:

3.1.1: Census data;

3.1.2. Provisions of services or service utilization data.

. 3.1.3.. Number of individuals admitted to residential treatment services..

3.1.4. Discharge numbers.

3.1.5. Discharge reasons.

3.1.6. Patient residential zip code.

-.3-1-7. Demographics of individuals served including, but.not limited to:

3.1.8. Gender.

3.1.9;: Age.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Evaluation Team as outlined in Paragraph
2.3.1. submits quarterly reports and a virtual or in-person presentation outlining:

.3.2.1. Evaluative program outcomes.

3.2.2. De-Identified and aggregate client-level data from sources referenced
from the Department.

3.2.3. Outcome and de-identified, aggregate client-level data for Department
purposes, including but not limited to:.

'  3.2.3.1. Service Utilization Data.

3.2;3.2. Acute Psychlatric Hospitalization reports.

3.2.3.3. Number of youth remaining in community comparatively to the
number of youth needing to access residential treatment.

3.2.4: Gap analysis.

NFI North, Inc: Exhibit A Amendmer^t 02 ■ Contractor IniUals
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4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor must ensure that the CANS assessment tool is used with
psychiatric oversight and FAST Forward engagements with 95% of engaged
children, youth and young adults as well as their families.

4.2. The Contractor must ensure that the Youth Progress Scale (VPS) and Team
Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) assessment tools are utilized with 60% of
engaged children/youth/young adults and their families.

4.3. The Contractor must ensure that FAST Forward plans of care are completed
with 100% of engaged children, youth and young adults as well as their families.

NFI North, Inc. ' Eidubit A Amendment 02 Contrector Initials
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with 100% General funds.

3. The Contractor agrees that provided services will be billed to Medicaid following the
codes and fee schedule set forth by the Department.

.3.1. The Contractor shall seek reimburement for services as follows:

3.2. First, bill the clients other insurance or payor sources.

3.3. Secondly, For Medicaid erirolled individuals:

3.3.1. Medicaid Fee for Service: The Contractor shall bill Medicaid for services on
the Fee for Service (FFS) schedule for the following services, with prior
authorization from the Department: .

3.3.1:1. Community-based wrap-around services.

3.3.1.2. Family peer support, self-help/peer services

3.3.1.3. Youth peer support, selfrhelp. peer services.

3.3.1.4. Mental health services not otherwise specified.

3.3.1.5. Respite care-lh the home.

3.3.1.6. Respite" care; not in the home, foster care, child.'non-theraoeutic.

3.3.1.7. Respite care, not in the home, foster care, therapeutic..child,

3.3.1.8. Respite care, not in the home, group home, child; per diem. •

3.3.2. The Department will approve the use of the necessary ISO code(s) for
Medicaid billing.

3.4. Lastly, the Contractor shall bill this Agreerrient, for services provided to individuals'
that are not billable to other insurance or payers, or Medicaid as follows:

3.4.1. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department in
accordance, .with ■ Exhibit 8-5 Amendment #2 and with this Exhibit B
Amendment #2..

3.4.2. The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the Department for
actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement in
accordance with the approved line items as specified in the Exhibits B-3
Amendment #2(SFy 2020), and Exhibit B-4 Amendment #2 (SFY 2021), shall
be on a cost reimbursement basis.

3.4.3. Reirribursement for costs billed to the Department shall be made monthly.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the ten
(10th) day of the following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for

NFI North, Inc. ExNbIt B Amendment #2 Contractor inttJalt
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authorized expenses incurred In the prior month. The Contractor shall ensure the
Invoice Is completed, dated and retumed to the Department in order to Initiate payment.
Invoices shall be net any other revenue received tov^ards the sen/ices billed In fulfillment
of this agreement.

4.1. Backup documentation shall Include; but is not limited to;

4.1.1. General Ledger showing revenue and expenses for the contract.

4.2. The following backup documentation may also be requested as needed:

4.2.1. Invoices supporting expenses reported.

4.2.2. Cost center reports

4.2.3. Profit and loss report

4.2.4. Remittance Advices from the insurances billed. Remittance Advices do not

ne.ed to be supplied with the invoice, but should be retained to be available
upon request.

. 4.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

4.4. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs'and services and have records available for-Department review,
as requested.

4.5. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the.
contract corripletlon date specified in Form .P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

5. Failure to rneet the scope of services may jeopardize Contractor's current and/or future
funding..

6. in lieu of hard copies, ail invoices may be assigned ar) electronic signature and emailed
to Tanja.Godtfr6dsen@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports, documentation, or
budgets as Ideritined in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 6 - Amendment
#2. .

8. Notwithslanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, In whole or in. part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable .to the services

NFI North. Inc. ExNbll B Aff>«ndrn«fU .Conlractor initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit B - Amendment #2
provided, or if the said services .or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line Hems, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

NFI North, Inc. Ezhlbti B Amendment 02 Contractor Irtliiais

RFP.20ie-D6H.02-CAREM.Ol.A02 Papb 3 ot 3 Data ̂  Z



or-^ I n I

U tnurnnmmt f

•.nt j22ac
saui. i. asof^ * tr»«rmt t trmttn fTW'w* * m»r/rt ~ ifwf»n

CffCCOWl woeo*»» 1 .BWyj- U» M—iwmnyt^ wu^—cl
BO«OOB««

wnf" T
ooowmt cff«eo'«ti MBW • OXOMWOJ itvj

trw COCWfO «mt«t
:(i.ic«i«i» aiw atowiTgggJL

WCWT»» «IW trft i wwi'm njcwQ. mtmrc «

W

wwfm t OSUSl.
wwf* •tllLBL at>tr«c aiSlSL fWOir wwa i ntxtut SSI.

eSKj eesis. w« iiwrt

SUSiL taa- U2JS2.

liiHZi. 1221 »»»<rti

I—

«.'■<_ t» »n

tewT" lUo£^

wtU'o
II iii*i I 22JL

rrtWit «»»•« S>l£Sl. tt »*»> ~~F •FUl-'*
mutii prr»«> lUald. tgiTin iiija

L£E£i >£ll 2££U21, liiU

SSsZi
■ewfi orgrr«ri« *£i£S_ nun

wm* H5C w»«<« «g»w<

t WH»B utirof iicuraec «tiw»r I ilUifiT
um (cmtta't iltWIfi

FO»A
pAU

n«auB9 SNHQ pipwj
iMiim •wqq pwx-

pnu-
'* p»on ^--..r>*pQ.

.--lAQMMflaMWOl—

OMUAfl

i!£SKj
eraaTRiBTKTizirm

TS=77I{97W1SSZSr(l7TVKSS5ini9 :a

■KTSBSnSIaia ■ ■■i#i

UMMH ptM IMMH fO tWMOMdiO

sewej ISVi 1 MW3 weiweeiefi *•»



Can iMMvtanM faaey aanica* ̂  fASt Fmm

Wan HMBpaWn Oapttmaw wf HaaO w«d Mwnan »ar«i<^

KtaUBSkflL

lar€:nil«~a»»wwWa»r«»Ta.^mfMTy»i»t>a

tavw>iff/tnw4nnmn

'.w..." TotMlPtngOTCoa*-

•- Dhad - fcianau"^^
C u aj 11B* 8tiam< Watch-; v ;-;raMb*0KH9caRlr«Ct

Thaci - — •tndhaet - - ••■Vod'■ Tatu.
FWad

Oiraci
««OT

i.tgjai.ao

« - -a^-. -

womc*

Fbad
i>4.w«.ia (T

Tewi —
'. - ^ •• Rxsd

TSro Ttsro>m-^*nan
•vn WnWn

ijaajxiarr i.itoja.x
tfijtiri I I wa.tSny «a.uw

naww I  tioiU Djesw Ttsssa

222 T35ow lias

eaniiwa l.»U«~nsB *jwe» «■»>» las'

Wn»n«c~

wjeacB
T3SSZlTOS Tvgag >T.W««

"uHnr! 322t. TranT" t iniSM ItlTOW H.m09
TJStS4.MIA> MJIW.U . »«.4U» »■»»«,M

n.oMoa Ti.eeaae
Udbisrs »«0

TTnns TTas "iisny Tnss "jrtS

TBTSTBEIT IjS^y ISTH
t.Mace UA.U ».w»

"iSSeeS
•Moi ««cow

■abzes ttJMMnm raauaaa (M ffl UUH4J
UlliiiU

Tnera xjeata
TTfnsni

nioaca
U'UU

at.tooof
taocoaoaI  ui:h« w i.et>j«X4a I..U>UU

It. Oanpaaowi
i.tMM na.twoanrass ■ I4MC0 iM.m.M' HtXMW

>a5T fCwwaltO ■ Hn» <S>«e*n« at.aawiwin.a?) T m.MM i  hivaibS
•U.UdU T iM.eoaaJ T"

?4MJTlal T" "^ISrSa
lUMM

wruiku iUU«.U
TRT

i»a.»i»c»<« e*wo« »g?

Eiawa K/vwWww sa

z?Jo



Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2
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Fast Forward Services

1.
Mediccid SeneRt

enrolled

HCBS Benefit

with SA
Medicaid

Current Children's Mental Health.

HCBC Medicaid-Rate Schedule
' fHyperfink m Cell 1-61

—r' rj^rcai'iie;
Link to Current Children's Mental Health HCBC Medicaid Rate

Schedule:

httDs://nhmmis.nh.aov/Dortats^DS/wcm/connect/563ed7804c2
Non Medicaid Benefit

enrolled kids -

Medicaid tailing
under ISO auth.

moo4ii

Medicaid ' Sro.OCVday

87b06d8d46ffacbe5ab710/202(HChildrens^MentaHHeatth+H

3
AD Medicaid co>«red

children

Irrtensive in

home supports-
.  using ISO
authorization

{H0041) •

Medicaid
ISO/day

CBS+Medicatd+Rate+Schedule.odf?MOD=AJPERES

r.-7,s^.2020'^
^;»-LlFun(l9Ar.'H

'I.*-'

4

Uninsured or under

Insured youth who
meet Fast Forward

elioibnitv

Non Mecficaid

billable

State -

Gcficral
Fund

dollars

Follows ChBdren's Mental-Heallh

HCBC Medicaid Rate Schedule
(Hyperlink in CeO 1-6.)

\

;$230.(X)0
inclusive of the

Amount of.
Funding in
Exhibit B-3
Amendment

#2. SFY 2020
Budget

$365,000
inclusive of

; the Amount

of Funding in
Exhibit B-4.
Amwidment

#2. SFY 2021
Budget

Pi

L'ti' v.'-

; r..»». .

V-*"- ! -tri

•  K '--

.-V.

wmm

i

Vi

;'• . ■ "•

'it.

'.i-'iPr-: ..

W—

5

Noo-Medtcatd youth

until enroOed in

Medicaid

Bilfing for afl
services witbin

FAST Forward

array usng youth
invoice

State

Ger«ral

Fund

dollars-

Follows both Children's Mental'
Health HCBC Medicaid ̂ ta

Schedule (Hyperlink in CeD 1-6)
and a paymerrt of the $60.00 per

day for intensive In-home
services (If acslicablel..

6

Non Medicaid billable

Customizable Goods ■

arxf Services

Allowabte

Customizable '
Goods and

-  Services

State

Gerreral

Fund

dollars

Billed to contract per the Fast

Forward Program Manual
guideltrres for allowable uses. -

. Use youth irtvoice.

Psychiatric Hospital Oversight .

7

Care Coordir\ation

with NH Wraparound
Up to 5 days per
hospitaiization

billable

State

Gerreral

Fund

doDars

$70.(X)/day. up to a maximum of
five (5) days.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

119 PLEASANf STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9SA4 i-SOI)^S2-334SexL9544

. Fix; 603-27M332 TOD Accm: 1^00-735-2^
www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 15. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House /
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with NFI North, Inc..Vendor #177575-
BOOl, PC Box 4.17, 40 Park Lane. Contoocook, NH 03229, for the provision of Care Management
Entity services for the FAST Forward program' by increasing the price limitalion by'$742,840, from
$194,320 to an amount not to exceed $937,160, and iextending the contract completion date from June
30, 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective upon the date of Governor and Council approval. The original
-contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017 (Item #398) 100% General Funds

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2018 and SFY 2019, and are anticipated to be
available in SFY 2020 upon the availabilly.and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office
without approval from Gpvemor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

06-95-92-9210102053 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRfeNS BEHAVRL HLTH, SYSTEM OF CARE

SFY Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Amount

.  Increase

Amount

Total

Amount

2018 072-509073 Grants-Federal 92102100 $6,000 $0 ' $6.000'

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 $91,160 $0 $9,1,160

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Sen/ices
92102053 $97,160 $322,640 $420,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Program

Services
92102053 $0 $420,000 $420,000

Total $194,320 $742,840 . $937,160



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to incorporate Family Peer Support and Evaluation of the
FAST Forward Program into this contract and to remove those item$ from a separate contract, as
required by HB 517. HB 517 required'the Department to include all wraparound services associated
with the FAST Forward program into one contract that are not currently in the Medicaid State Plan
amendment. The Medicaid State Plan amendment implements the optional 1915(i) State Plan Home
and Community-Based Services (HOBS) benefit for disabled individuals and requires the following
changes;

•  Reduce the funding necessary for the FAST Forward services through this contract by
allowing the new Medicaid Benefit .to cover some costs. • j

•  Incorporate the scope of service from the Family Peer Support contract into this contract
to ensure the contractor is operating as a full Care Management Entity (CME) and bills
the new Medicaid Benefit for that service.

•  Incorporate the funds for non-Medicaid billable costs associated with the Family Peer
Support and Family. Leadership scope of service into this contract.

•  Extend this contract for a year.

Funds in this agreement are used for the provision of CME services for the FAST Forward
prograrh, which include, but are not limited to:

• . Provision of Individual.Service Options (ISO) in-home sen/ices.

•  Wraparound Coordination. . ' • •

•  Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  . Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Provision of Youth peer support.

•  Provision of Family Peer Support.

•  ■ • Oetermlnalion of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

• ' Provision of stipends for customizable goods and services, and other non-Medicaid
billable services.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their families experience difficulties in day-to-day life
due to'serious emotionai'disturbances (SED) arid face challenges finding the appropriate supports
when .supports are needed. Children and youth are often placed out of the home in residential
treatment facilities, psychiatric hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, or daytirhe; programs. Many of these
placements take the children and youth out of their local schools and communities.

Despite .the best intentions and hard work of families and providers, services are often
fragmented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire is making great progress in addressing these
challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound program called FAST Forward. The FAST Fonward
program stands for "Families and Systems Together^ and is designed to serve youth with SED and
their families, whose needs are not met by traditional service streams and programs. This is done by
utilizing a high fidelity Wraparound approach which is a definable, individualized, and strengths-based
planning process that incorporates a child and family team and results in a unique set of services and



His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
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supports for the child or youth and their family, with the plan closely monitored to achieve a positive set
of outcomes.

Qualifying children and youth are Medicaid eligible, aged five (5) through twenty-one (21).
experiencing difficulties In day-to-day life due to a diagnosis of SED, and are at risk of multi-agency
involvement. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can be served in their
home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending their community's school program.
Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program include, but are not limited to; increased positive
social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community connectedness for children, youth, and
families; decreased out of home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); increased
caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access.to programs and supports that are uniquely
tailored to each child and family's culture, -strengths, and goals. This is a unique program in New
Hampshire to service the described population in this rrianner.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound vwth an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeal use and duration of slays for children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.
Additionally, this program embodies the values and principles of a System of Care within the
Department, which is required to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Law.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option- to extend for up to two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Council. This
amendment requests one (1) year of renewal, leaving one (1) year remaining.

. The Vendor has provided all areas of scope throughout the life of the contract. The FAST
Forward Program has successfully expanded -to serve more children due to the Vendor's effective
implementation and management of the programming within the contract. The Vendor has shown a
willingness to be flexible when heeded, but also shown strong procedural • adherence to the
Department's policies and the contractual obligations.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with children
and youth with SED may have fewer services available to them in their community and statewide to
meet the challenges that mental illness presents them. Many of these same families have.struggled to
find supports previously, that meets their complex needs and find themselves without supports that can
effectively meet them. If this amendment is not approved, there may be an increase in out-of-
community and an out-of-state placement for these children and youth, increased involvement with
DCYF, as well as more frequent and longer stays for these children and youth at New Hampshire
Hospital.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% General Fuhds.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
• and the Honorable Council
Page 4 of 4

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this.prcgram.

Respectfully submitted;

Katja S. Fox .
Director'

Approved by:
J^ey A.'Meyers
Commissioner

The Oeporlmenl e! Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communiiies and families i»t
providing opportunities for eitixns to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

June 30. 2020. ■

2.- Form P-37; General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$937,160. " -v

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for Stale Agency, to read:

E. f^aria Reinemann. Esq.. Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10. Slate Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330. ' ' " '

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety, and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #1.

6. Delete Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in its entirely, and replace'with
Exhibit B-Amendment #1.

7. Delete Exhibit 8-2. SFY2019 budget, in its entirety; and replace with Exhibit 8-2'- Amendment
#1. SFY 2019 budget.

8. Add Exhibit 8-3, SFY2020 budget.

9. Add Exhibit K. DHHS tnformation Security Requirements.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward Contract .(hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this third day of April. 2018. is by and between the State of New
Harnpshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department"} and NFI Norlh. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation
with a place of business at PO Box 417. 40 Part^ Lane. Contoocook. NH 03229.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item #39B). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the Stale and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and'

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. Generaj Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the Stale may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and .

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of sen/ices to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideraiion of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

NFI North. Inc. Amontfmenl • 1
RFP.20r8-08H-02-CAReM Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Mahaoement Entity Services for FAST Forward

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of trie date written below.

Oate

Date ^

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

^ f=;<
Name:

Title:

NFI North, Inc.

r.

Narf^e: £r.
Title: ^i<,ei:cWlv<

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

Stale of flc\P Ho County of /Vfp/Ti nrvYr on // . before the underslgrSed officer,
personally appearedflhe person identified directly above, ̂r salisfaclorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above..

ture of Notary Public or Juslice^f the peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Cornmission Expires; "3Wn t. ' (q .

^•>5-/ MY

S  CXJMMlSSfOH \ i
s  f OCPIRES : s
=  : juNEa.wai ; s

NFI Nonh. inc.

RFP-20ta-OaM^2-CAREM
AmenOmenJ II

Page 2 ot 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Manaflement Entity Services for FAST Forward

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by-this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL .

Dale I Name;

Title:

i hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the <3ovAe(|0£^d Executive Council of the Siote
of New Hampshire ot the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY.OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NFi North. ifK.

RFP-20t B-(DeH-02-CAREM

Amendment ft

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment 1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that all services provided to children, youth, and
families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
culturally andjinguisticaily competent, and community based.

1.2. The Contractor shall ' submit a detailed description of the language
assistance/ communication access services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency or who have communication disabilities to-ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or slate courl orders may have an
impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to

.  modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement
so as to achieve compliance therewith.'

1.4. The Contractor agrees that provided services will be billed to Medicaid
following the codes and fee schedule set forth by the Department.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with-the children, youth, and
families enrolled in the FAST Forward program, as well as service providers,
in the. process pf assessing each family member's capabilities and challenge
areas in order to develop supports and interventions that are effective,
individualized and acknowledge the strengths of the family.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination which includes, but is-
not limited to;

2.2.1. (^Maintaining the necessary number of Wraparound Coordinators to,-
ensure that there ,is no,program waitlist and caseload standards
described in 2.2.3 and 2.2.4 are met.

2.2.2. .Expanding.the Wraparound Coordination staff as. needed, which is
contingent on prior approval frorh. the Department.

2.2.3. Maintaining a •maximum caseload per Wraparound Coordinator of
^  " seven (7) to eight (8)"children/youth and their families.

2.2.4. Maintaining a maximum caseload per -certified Wraparound
Coordinator of (8) to ten (10) children/youth and their families.

2.2.5. Maintaining a Licensed Clinician, (rained in System of Care
principles, which will provide clinical consultation and add a resource
for therapy as needed during transitions to local community mental

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials

NFI North, Inc. / f -
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Care r^anagement Entity Services for FAST Forward
Exhibit A-Amendment 01

health centers arid other community service providers for individual
and family therapy.

■ 2.2.6. Following the practices outlined In the NH Wraparound Model
curriculum.

2.2.7. Developing a community-based Plan of Care using the individualized
wraparound process, and providing support in meeting the needs and
objectives of the Plan.

2.2.8. Coordinating and monitoring services between community agencies
■to.ensure needs are being effectively and appropriately met. as

■ outlined ir\ the child/youth's Plan of Care.

2.2.9. .Assisting, the child/youth and their family in identifying natural
supports and comrhunlty-based opportunities and activities that
nurture strengths, skills, and resilience including, but riot llmited to:

2.2.9.1. Sports.
.  2.2.9.2. Arts.

2.2.9.3. Clubs.

2.2.9.4.' Volunteering.

2.2.10. Providing the child/youth and their farriily with educational information
and materials, as needed.

2.2.11. Establishing a trusting relationship, with' the child/youth and their
farhily.

2.2.12. Accepting, and .encouraging the racial, ethnic, linguistic, religious,
national, international, and .political diversity of individuals, while
promoting understanding- and. respect for the culture", heritage,
history, beliefs and values of all children, youth, families, and staff,
regardless of age. sex. sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender
expression.

2.2.l3..Schedulirig, coordinating, and facilitating .Family Team Wraparound
Meetings monthly that will consist of members Identified in
collat)oration with the child/youth and their family, in order to
coordinate services, to meet the needs of the family.

2.2.14. Developing cooperalive working relationships with all members of the
Provider Network serving the child/youth and their family,- while

sensuring that services from providers are conducted as outlined in the
.Plan of Care.

2.2.15.'Establishing and maintaining communication with the child or.youth's
school program."

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM ■ Exhibit A Contractor Initials f
NFI North. Inc. . /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A-Amendment fll

2.2.16. Entering appropriate, case-specific information into the data system
which entails having an appropriate data system that meets the
Federal Requirements of HIPAA and the ability to bill Medicaid.

2.2.17. Assisting families with the development of a safety or crisis plan.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide additional supports to the child/youth and their
family including, but not limited to: ,

2.3.1. Local transportation.

2.3.2. Family treatment. . )

.  . 2.3.3. Twenty-four (24-hour) crisis interventions.

•2.3.4.' individual counseling.

2.3.5. Medical coordination.

2.4.' The Contractor shall collaborate with agencies statewide to provide.
Wraparound Coordination Services including, but not limited to:

2-.4.1. University of.New Hampshire (UNH) - Institute on Disability.

2.4.2. National Alliance for the Mentally III - New Hampshire (NAMI-NH):

2.4.3. Behavioral Health Innovation, Antioch.

2.4.4.' Bureau of Children's Behavioral Health.

2.4.5. Peer support agencies.

2.4.6. Community Mental Health Centers'

2.5. The Contractor shall provide Individual Service Options (I.SO) Intensive In-
Home services in accordance with He-C 6339; which include, but are not
limited to;-

2.5.1. Crisis support.

2.5.2. Intensive behavioral supports. ' .

2.5.3. Planned and emergency respite.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide Youth Peer Support to all youth who are served
within the System of Care in" order to enhance their ability to set goals for

• quality of life and transition to adulthood, achieve greater Independence in
advociating for themselves, and. manage their ovyn wellness goals.-while
increasing resilience. Youth Peer Support services include; .but are not
limited to: '

2.6.1. Strategic sharing of lived experience to decrease peer isolation.

. 2.6.2. Encouraging youth to share their own experiences in order to self-
- advocate and drive their own goals and planning.

2.6.3. Supporting youth to identify triggers and barriers and to develop their
own wellness plans.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM ■ Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

EKhibIt A - Amendment HI

2.6.4. Supporting youth to make informed decisions over all the domains of
theirlife.

2.6.5. Assisting youth with participating in crisis prevention planning
activities and to' understand their own crisis plans.

2.6.6. iSupporting youth in understanding and taking pride in one's own
diversity, as well as encouraging understandirSg, respect, sensitivity,
and acceptance of the diversity of others.

2.6.7. Supporting youth in forming or maintaining community connections
and informing youth of opportunities for leadership trainings or
systems level engagement including, but not limited to:

2.6.7.1. Wellness groups.

2.6.7.2. Advisory groups.

2.6.7.3. Focus groups.

2.6.7.4. Regional planning activities.

2.6.8. Supporting youth in navigating and' understanding public and
community resources, and how to access them.

2.6.9'. Offering services through Youth MOVE NH.

2.6.10. Partnering with entities tO'help educate youth and their families on
community resources including, but not limited to:

2.6.10.'1. Schools.

2.6.10.2. 21i;

2.6.10.3. Parent Information Centers (PIC).

2.6.10.4. Local parks and rec.

2.6.10.5. Department of Health and Human Services.

2.6.10.6. NHEASY.

2.6.10.7. Public health offices. ^

2.6.10.8. Clinics.

2.6.10.9. Churches.

.  2.6.10.10.YMCA.

2.6.1 b. 11. Local AA and NA chapters.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide Family Peer Support services which shall
include, but not be limited to:

"  2.7.1. Maintaining the necessary number of Family Peer Support Partners
(PPSP) to-provide one-to-one family support that is sufficient to

RFP-2018-OBH-02-CAREM EKhibit A Contractor Initials ^
NFINorth.lnc. ' ?
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

E*hlblt A - Amendment fll

ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload standards are
met.

2.7.2. Maintaining a minimum number of FPSP to provide one-to-one family
support and ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload
standards are met as described in 2.7.6.

2.7.3. Maintaining one (1) Director of Child and Family Support who shall
-  supervise and train the FPSP.

2.7.4. Expanding the community networK of family leaders by:

2.7.4.1. Identifying potentialfamily leadership candidates.

2.7.4.2. Ensuring candidates complete a NAMI-NH leadership
program of their choice.

2.7.5. Expanding statewide opportunities for family leadership involvement
related to mental health, which shall include, but are not limited to:

2.7.5.1. Governance structures, by participating in meetings and
providing a family perspective.

2.7.5.2. Public Policy boards.

2.7.6.3. Advocacy boards and task forces.

2.7.5.4. Delivering family education programs.

2.7.5.5. Supporting group facilitation.

2.7.6. Ensuring each f=PSP is available to provide one-to-one support to a
minirrium of ten (10) families at any given time, with priority given to
families enrolled In the FAST Forward Program. One-to-one support
may Include, but is not limited to:

•2.7.6.1. Advocacy assistance. •

2.7.6.2. Family Peer support.,

2.7.6.3. ■ Education,

2.7.6.4. Community referral.

2.7.7. Delivering services In Section 2.7.6, above and in accordance with
•  family's needs and desire for .support in a variety of r^ethods, which

may include, but are hot limited to:

"2.7.7.1. Phone contact.

2.7.7.2. Email contact.

2.7:7.3. ̂  Face-to-face contact" the location of which may include,
but is not limited to:

2.7.7.4. Family's home.

2.7.7.5. School.

RFP-2018-08H-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment ffl

2.7.7.6. Wraparound Team meeting. •

2.7.7.7. Other community location.

2.7.8. Ensuring a minimum, of two (2) Parents Meeting the Challenge (PMC)
Family Education Programs are delivered which shall include, but not
be limited to:

.  2.7.8.1. Program is available to a minimum, of six (6) participants.

2.7.8.2. Program consists of eight (8) sessions.

'  2.7.8.3. Each session is scheduled for a minimum of three (3)
hours. '

2.7.8.4. Onsite chlldcare Is available to all participants.

2.7.8.5. All 'participants sign in prior to the beginning of the
program.

2.7.8.6. ■ All participants are .provided with a satisfaction survey.

2.7.9. Ensuring all individuals receiving' services funded through this
contract are provided with a satisfaction survey for completion.

2.7.10.Evaluating the One-to-One Support Program and the PMC Family
■  Education Program based on the satisfaction surveys completed in
accordance with Section 2.7.9.

2.7.1 VProvidirig a narrative summary of the One-to-One Support Program
and the PMC evaluations in accordance with Section 2.7.10, above.

2.7.-12.Providing .utilization reports in order to analyze program
effectiveness. . •

2.7.13. Providing monthly reports to the Department that include, but are not
limited to:

2.7.13.1. Contract activities completed during the previous month,
including the number of families served and
support/services provided.

2.7.13.2. Barriers to providing services.

2.7.13.3. Action plan to address identified barriers.

2.7.14. Ensuring monthly reports contain information for each fanriily served
that includes, but is not limited to: .

2.7.14.1. Family. Name.' • .

2.7.14.2. Amount of travel for each FPSP. to, assess for capacity
and costs for sustainability.

2.7.14.3. Number of hours the FPSP provided as support to each
family for each invoice date range.

2.7.14.4. Type of support provided including, but not limited^
RFP-2018-DBH-62-CAREM Exhibit A ' Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment 01

2.7.14.4.1. Advocacy assistance

2.7.14.4.2. Family Peer support

2.7.14.4.3. Education Community referral

2.7.14.5. Method used to provide support which may include, but is
not limited to:

2.7.14.5.1. Phone contact.

2.7.14.5.2. Email contact.

2.7.14.5.3. Face-to-face contact and location of
encounter, which may include but is not
limited to:

2.7.14.5.3.1.' Family's Home.

2.7.14.5.3.2. School.

2.7.14.5.3.3. Wraparound Team Meeting.

2.7.14.5.3.4. Other Meeting Locations.

2.7.15. Ensuring adequate staffing to.meet the needs of children and youth
enrolled or eligible for program are available to provide the One-to-
One Support Program as indicated in Section 2.7.1.

2.7.16. Ensuring a minimum of two (2) PMC Education Programs are
delivered, in accordance with Section 2.7.6. with at least one per
State Fiscal Year which includes' providing attendance sheets from'
"each of.the PMCs to the Department no later than five (5) business
days from the date of the PMC. -

2.7.17. Identifying potential family leadership candidates, as indicated in
Section 2.7.4., within sixty (60) days of Governor and Executive
Council approval of the Amendment #1 to this agreement.

2.7.18. Ensuring a minimum of. two (2) identified family leadership
candidates, as indicated in Section 2.7.17.. complete NAMI-NH's
leadership program no later than ten (10) days prior to the.contract-
completion date. . . , • ;

2.8. the Contractor shall make a. determination of the appropriate stipends for
customizable goods and services on a one-time versus on-going basis that
are intended to support a family member with meeting identified underlying
needs, and shall distribute the good.s and sen/ices. Customizable goods'and
services may include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Atankof home heating oll in the winter. .

2.8.2. Prosocial therapeutic activities, including but not limited to, wellness
classes and required equipment.

RFP.2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Cntlty Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A-Amendment #1

2.8.3. Gas cards" for a family; lo go to a .treatment center with their
child/youth.

2.9. The Contractor shall train and coach Wraparound Coordinators by methods
including, but not limited to:

2.9.1. Obtaining services from the Institute on Disability' at the University of
New Hampshire (10,0) to provide coaching and training for the FAST
Forward program staff.

2.9.2. Ensuring that Wraparound Coordinators and supporting staff
complete trainings which include, but are not limited to:

2.9.2.1. Wraparound Coordinators and program manager shall
attend all three (3) days of NH Wraparound Model-
Facilitator training.

.2.9.2.2. . Wraparound Coordinators. Program.Director- and other
designated agency staff shall complete the Cultural and

■ Linguistic Competency training (from NH Office of Minority
or Refugee Affairs).

2.9.2.3. Wraparound Coordinators .should attend monthly
wraparound supervision group.

2.9.2.4. Wraparound Coordinators shall work with'two (2) families
for at least three (3) months'-and passed fidelity of
implementation check administered byhis or her coach.

2.9.2.5. The Wraparound Coordinator shaii apply on the tOD'
website and be approved as a certified Wraparound
.Coordinator. •

•  2.9.3. Coaching on a schedule including, but not limited to:

■ 2.9.3.1. " Weekly for the first six (6) months of employment. '

2.9.3.2.- Bi-weekly from month six (6) to month (12)..

•2.9.3:3. ■ Monthly after one year of service.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure that Wraparound Coordinators have the
knowledge and skills required to effectively work with families, including
considerable knowledge and skill- In the domain of cultural and linguistic
competence, as detailed .in the NH Children's Behavioral Health .Core
Competencies, available at:

httD://iod.unh.edu/sites/default/files/media/NHChildrensBehav/nh "bhcomoete
ncies final.odf

2.11. The Contractor shall ericourage the diversity that children, youth, and their
families rnay bring to their FAST Forward encouriters by collaborating with
the DHHS Behavioral Health Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC)
Coordinator for technical assistance which-includes, but is not limited'to:

RFP.2O18-O0H-O2-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A - Amendment

2.11.1. Conducting a CLC organizational assessment.

2.11.2. Developing a plan to increase access to and quality of appropriate '
behavioral health services for all potential populations.

■2.11.3. Participating in the Behavioral Health Equity Work Group, a peer
learning network of children's behavioral health and child serving
organizations.

2.12. The Contractor shall administer evaluation tools in accordance with the
FAST Forward Program f^anual which include, but are not limited to:
2.12.1.The Youth Progress Rating Scale (VPS), also known as outcome

rating scale (ORS). which is a quantitative youth and family self-
report survey. The responses will be reviewed by the FAST Forward
Coordinator and kept in the family's case record and forwarded to the
FAST Forward Program Manager.

2.12.2. The Team Meeting Rating Scale (TMRS) which is a quick survey of
the family and youth at each Wraparound Team Meeting. It is.
administered at the "end of each Wraparound Team Meeting. ■ The
responses will be reviewed by the FAST Forward Coordinator and
kept in the family's case record and forwarded to the FAST Forward
Program Manager.

2.12.3. The Document Review Measure (DRM), which is a review of case file
content, is completed by the FAST Forward Program Manager. The
Vendor must allow the FAST Forward Program Manager access to
case documents for this review to be completed:

2.12.4. The Contractor shall submit quarterly report to the Department to
■  include census data, provisions or services or service utilization data,

discharge numbers and discharge reasons.
2.12.5.The Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) tool

which Is an initial assessrhent to determine a child/youth's eligibility
for the FAST Forward Program and an on-going review measure, to
be completed at a minimum of every'six (6) months, to measure for
progresswith the child/youth and family's'needs and strengths.

2.12.5.1. The Contractor will be responsible'for completing this,
assessment, unless completed by child/youth's clinician.

2.12.5.2. The assessment will be kept in the family's case record
and the FAST Forward Program Manager may request
the ififormalio'n in order to do a Quality Assurarice,

2.13. The Contractor shall develop an evaluation team, which provides assistance
in obtaining, understanding, and sharing evaluative data, of youth and
families that are served within the System of Care in order to enhance the

'  ability to communicate outcomes to the Department and other System of

RFP-2018-D8H-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management entity Services for FAST Forward'

Exhibit A - Amendment

Care stakeholders in alignment with RSA135:F. Evaluation team provisions
include, but are not limited to:

2.1I1. Evaluative program outcomes and de-identified and aggregate client-
level data from sources referenced from the Department.

2.13.2.Outcome and de-idenlified. aggregate client-level data .-for
Department purposes, including but not limited to;

2.13.2.1.. Service Utilization. Data

2.13.2.2. Acute Psychiatric Hospitalization reports

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure that a- leadership team of up to three (3)
members participates in an annual site review process which includes, but is
not limited to;

2.14.1. Review-of program services for twenty percent (20%) of parlicipants
served annually to review for compliance with all items outlined in the
contract which will include, but not be limited to:

2.14.1.1. Eligibility and re-eligibility assessments.

2.14.1.2. Plan of care;

2.14.1.3. Person Centered Planning practices.

2.14.1.4. Conflict of interest issues.

2.14.1.5. Setting requirements.

2.14.1.6. Provider qualifications.

2.14.2. Collaborating with the Department regarding areas requiring
improvement as a result of the site review which will include, but not,
be limited to creating a plan that outlines the activities for
Improvement no more than thirty (30) days after the site review.

2.14.3. Collaborating with the Department on implementing the stated plan
from Subsection 2.14.2 for improvement and reporting on all related

• activities until evidence of irnprovement is achieved.

2.14.4. Providing documentation and outcome data review.

2.14.5. Providing anonymous survey questionnaires for children/youth and
their families.

2.14.6. Providing interviews which include, but are not limited to:

'2.14.6.1. ChiidrenA'outh and their families

2.14.6.2.'Wraparound Coordinators.

2.14.6.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

2.14.6.4. Program Director.

RFP-2018-0BH-02-CAREM Exhibil A ContrBCtor Initials
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3. Staffing

3.V The Contractor shall maintain of the necessary number of Wraparound
Coordinators to ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload
-Standards described In Subsection■2.2.3. and 2.2.4 are met.

3.2. The Contractor shall employ one (1) Program DirectoV.
3.3. The Contractor shall employ one (1) Licensed Clinician.
3.4. The Contractor shall maintain the necessary number of Family Peer Support

Partners (FPSP) to provide one-to-one family support that is sufficient to
ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload standards are met,

3.5. ■ The Contractor shall maintain a minimum number of FPSP to provide one-to-
one family support and ensure that there is no program waitlist and caseload
standards are met as described in 2.7.6.

■  3.6. The Contractor shall maintain one (1) Director of Child and Family Support
vrho shall supervise and train the FPSP.

3.7. The Contractor shall maintain an ISO'program staff that is consistent with
He-C 6339 standards.

3.8. The Contractor shall maintain per diem direct support staff as needed.

4. Definitions

4;1. Children - Children ages five (5) through ten (10).'
4.2. FAST Forward (Families and Systems Together) - A program designed to

provide support to children.' yoUth. and their families by using a high fidelity
Wraparound approach, and adhering to a System of Care model.

4.3. He-C 6339 - He-C 6339 identifies qualification and performance
requirerrients to become a provider of community based in-home services for
the Division of Children. Youth and Families (DCYF) and service provision
for.the FAST Forward program. The proposed rule includes: five (5) different .
pro.viders of services: child health support services, home based therapeutic
services, therapeutic day treatment, adolescent community therapeutic
services, and in-home individual service options (ISO). The rule applies to
the community-based in-home service providers who' receive Medicaid or
financial reimbursement from the Department for services provided to
children and families.

4.4. Individual Service Options (ISO) Intensive In-Home Services - ISO
(individual Service Options) in-home services usually last up to six (6)
months, though this can be extended with agreement from the treatment
team. This service can be used to help strengthen families and prevent
removal of children from the home, or can be used to assist in the
reunification process. Services delivered to the home include
individual/family counseling and support, 24^ on call emergency support.

RFP-2018-D8H-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor Initials,
NFI North. Inc.
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respite. ' crisis management, treatment plan development and
implementation, transportation, advocacy with schools, health providers and
other community resources and assistance with any other identified needs.

4.5. Youth - Youth ages eleven (11) through twenty-one (21).

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination to all children/youth
and their families per year that are found to be.eligible for the FAST Forward
Medicaid Benefit Plan.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of two (2) PMC Education Programs

are delivered, in accordance with Section 2.7.16, no later than ten (10) days
prior to the contract completion date.

•5.2,1.' The Contractor shall provide attendance sheets from each of the
' PMCs to the Department ho later than five (5) business days from the
date of the PMC.

5.3.'. The Contractor shall ensure a rninimurri of two.(2) identified family leadership
candidates, as indicated in Section 2.7.17, complete NAMI NH's leadership
program no later^than ten (10) days prior to the contract completion date,

5.4. The Contractor shall provide 100% of family members with, a satisfaction
survey six (6) months Into program enrollment:

5.4.1. The Contractor shall aggregate the survey results and submit a report
on these results each year, to include the number of respondents.

(/1
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

.1. The State" shall-pay the Contractor an amount hot to exceed the Price Limitation,
block 1.8, "for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit, A, Scope
of Services.

2. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

2.1. The Contractor will submit an Invoice by the tenth (10'") working day of each
month, which " identifies and requests reimbursement "for authorized"
expenses Incurred In the prior month. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor within" thirty (30) days of receipt-of'each Invoice-for Contractor
services provided pursuant to this Agreement. '•

'2.2.' The Invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street

Concord.,NH 03301-
,3. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days from the

•Form P37, General Provisions. Contract Completion Date;;block 1.7.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or. In part," In "the.,event of
noncompliance with a.ny State or Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or If the said services have not been .completed In accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

5. .Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between

•  State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council..

6. Funds anticipated to be available from the Department of Health and Human
Services (Department) are:

■ 6.1. $37,000 per State Fiscal Year 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to provide
• administrative services, for a total two-year value of $74,000.

6.2. $280,000 per State Fiscal Year 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to
subcontract for Family Peer Support Services, for a total two-year value of
$560,000..

6.3. $75,000 per State Fiscal Vear 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to
subcontract for Training and Coaching Services for a total two-year value of
$150,000..

RFP-2018-DBH-02'CAREM Exhibit B - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _
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6.4. $28,000 per State Fiscal Year 2019 and 2020 for the Contractor to
subcontract for Evaluation Services, for a total hwo-year value of $56,000.

7. The Department will prior authorize services as listed below,- and then the Vendor
will be able to bill Medicaid. The Departmerit will.approve the use of the necessary
ISO code for billing. The Medicaid billing rates may include, but'are not limited to:

7.1. $70.27 per day for Community-Based Wraparound Services

7.2. $60.00 per day for the full array of ISO Level services.

7.3. $19.93 per 15 Minutes for Family Peer Support Services

7.4. $10.27 per 15 Minutes for Youth Peer Support Services

7.5. $1.000 per year/limit for Mental Health Service Not Otherwise Specified

7.6. $4.25 per 15 Minutes for Respite Care in the Home

7.7. $18.00 per day for Respite Care, Not in the Home. Foster Care, Not
Therapeutic. Chijd ages 6 -11

7.6. $21.41 per day for Respite Care,' Not in the Home, Foster Care. Not
Therapeutic, Child ages 12+

7.9. $70.00- per day for Respite Care. Not in the Home, Foster Care,'
Therapeutic, Child-

7.10. $110.00, per day for Respite Care, Not in the Home, Group Home, Child

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit 8 - Amendment ff 1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any. similar term referring .to
situations where persons other than authorized-users and for an other- than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally idenilflable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security'
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer. Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Departmeni
of Commerce. ■ .

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential "information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal informatlon including without limitaiion. Substance
Abuse Treaimeni Records, Case Records; Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any .and all information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Hurnan- Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted

.  services • of which collection; disclosure, protection, and disposillon is governed by
slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (Pi). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information-(FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN)."
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidentiarinformation.

.  4. "End User', means any person or entity (e.g.. conlraclor. contractor's employee.
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that, receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Cdntraci.

5. • "HIPAA" means the Heallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

\

6. incidenl means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of. service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware.

.  firmware, or'software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through, theft or device misplacement loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

OHHS, mfoimslion'^
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction."

•7. 'Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network ^designed. . tested, and"
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential OHHS data.

8. "Persona! Informalion" (or "PI") means Information which can'be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their, name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying informatiori which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected .Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § .
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45. C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto,

'  12. 'U.nsecured Protected Health lnformation" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured.by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or. indecipherable to. unauthorized iridividuals .and is

' developed or endorsed by a.standards developing organization that.Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute. '

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

■  A. Business Use and Disclosure of,Confidential lnformation,

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to ail,its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
Of the Privacy and SecuritY Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Informalion in response to a

V4. LBSI update <M.04.2016 Bdifpll X ConirectorlnHlaU.
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request for disclosure oh the basis that It is required by law.' in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be t>ound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be boiind by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violatior) of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. ,The Contractor agrees'thal DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
Ltser must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Coniract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Dala obtained under (his Contract may not b.e used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this,
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption.- If End User is transmitting DHHS dala containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Coritractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said'
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS

-  data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ .email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by erriail addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site..If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
• Data, the secure socket layers' (SSL) must be used and the web. site must -be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Corifidenllal Data.

6. Ground'Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail wilhin the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open. Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via .an open

V4. LdsI updBle 04.04.2018 Exhibil K Contfactor Initials
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is'erhploying. an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure .the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confideritial Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-delet'ioh cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all .
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure ot information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor vyill only retain the data,and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time,-the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in'whatever form it-may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

a; Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collecied in'
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or-cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events, that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.;

/  •

■  3. The-Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electroriic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a! Cloud rhust be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding-the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currenlly-isupporled and hardened operating systems, the-latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-rhalware utilities, The environment, as a

V4. Losl updslc 04.04.201.6 ExMbll K ConUDCIOr inniats _
DHHS Intormatton

Security hequirenienu
Page 4 of 9 Dale.m



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

..DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on Us systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented "process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing Stale of

' New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wip.e program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing)'as described in NIST Special Publication 600-88.-Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and'Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data "destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department

-  . upon request. The written certificalion will include air details necessdry to.
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Corttractor prior to destruction.

2: Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) . days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure rhethod such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this.
Contract; Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

. A. -Contractor agrees lo safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1." The Contractor will mainlain proper security controls to protect Department
confidentiar information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.-

2. The Contractor witi - maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction)- regardless of the
media, used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, elc.).- .

V4. Lesi update 04.04.20i8 Sxhiali K Contractor inftlats .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department conndentiai information for contractor provided systems..

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness end education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Deparlment confidenliat informalion.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process ' or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirerhents that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contracior will work with the Oeparlmeni to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Deparlment system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintainihg access to any Deparlment .systenn(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors. prior to
system access.being authorized. •

8. If the Department determines the Contractor.is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR'160.103, the Contractor will execute .a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and. is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Departrrient af its request to complete a System
Management Survey." The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement, the survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments.discretion with agreement by
the Contracior. or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained frorti the Information S.ecurity. Office

• leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V4: Losi updalo (M.04.2016 ExMbil K Cofiiraclof initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurhan Services'

Exhibit K

. DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conridentiai. Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. §'552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations .{45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and.Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to' protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State.of New Hampshire. Department of Inforniatiori Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at httpsi/Avww.nh.gov/dolt/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines.; standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor 'agrees to maintain a docum'ented breach" notification and Inciderit
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, arid

.  additional email addresses provided in this section, of any'security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
conndential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any Stale" of New Hampshire systems that connect to the"
State of New Hampshire network.

15.-Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential 'Data ot}tained under .this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor rnust ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at ail times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Ldsl update 04.04.2010 Exhibit K
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K '

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Conndentla) information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from- DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biomelric identifiers, etc.). ,

g. only authorized End .Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
■  derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases.

such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above..

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
.  shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
'  This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through

a third, party application.

Contractor is responsible for' oversight and compliance of their End Users/ DHHS .
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable lavys and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data ■
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer. lnformatipn Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours .of the
time that the Contraclor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene' a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4. Loil updilfl O4.O4.201 B ExMbit K Conlmclor Intlisl)
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. COWCORD.NH 03301''
<03-271.9544 1.800.«52.3345 EiL 95a

Fas: <03-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800.735-2964
www.<bh».nh.g«v

June 6. 2017

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu •
and the Honorable Council

State House .

Concord. New Hampshire 0330,1

REQUESTED ACTION . '

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health to
enter into an agreement with NFI .North. Inc. Vendor #177575-8001. PO Box 417. 40 Park Lane,
Contoocook. NH 03229. in an amount not to exceed $194,320. to provide Care Management Entity
services for the FAST Forward program effective July !, 2017 or upon the date of Governor and
Council approval, whichever is later, .through Jurie 30. 2019. 3% Federal Funds.' 97% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018 and SPY 2019..upon the availability and
continued apjpropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years through the Budget Office If
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and. Executive Council.

05-95-92.9210102053.HEALTH.AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT.OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUR FOR CHILDRENS BEHAVRL HLTH. SYSTEM OF CARE

•  Fiscal.
Year. Class/Account Class Title , Job Number . Total Amount

SFY 18 072-509073 Grants-Federal ■  92102100 ■ $6,000
SFY 18 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92102053 $91,160
SFY 19 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services. 92102053 $97,160

Total $194,320

EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used for the. provision of Care Management Entity services for
the FAST Forward program, which include, but are not limited to:

.• Provision of Individual Service Options (ISO) irvhome services.

•  Wraparound Coordination.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arto the Honorable Council

.Page 2 of 3 .

•  - Wraparound Coordinator training and coaching.

•  Wraparound team meeting attendance.

•  Provision of youth peer support.

•  Determination of needed customizable goods and services for the children/youth
receiving services and their families.

•  . Provision of stipends for customizable good.s and services, and other non-Medicaid
billable services.

Many New Hampshire children, youth, and their tamilies experience difficulties in day-to-day life
due to serious emotional disturbances and face challenges finding the right support at the right time.
The children and youth are often placed out of home in residentiial treatment facilities, psychiatric
hospitals, juvenile justice facilities, or daytime programs. Many of these placements'take the children
and youth out of their local schools and communities. Despite the best Intentions and hard wo.rk of
families and providers, sen/ices are often fragmented and difficult to navigate. New Hampshire is
making great progress in addressing these challenges using the New Hampshire Wraparound,
program called FAST Fonward. The FAST Forward program stands for 'Families and Systems
Togethef' and is designed to serve youth with serious emotional disturbances (SED) arid their families,
whose needs are not-met by traditional service streams and programs, by utilizing a high fidelity
Wraparound approach which is'a definable, individualized, and strengths-based.planning process that
incorporates a child and family team and results in a unique set of services and supports for a child
and family, wHIi the plan.closely monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes;

Qualifying children and youth who are Medicaid eligible, aged six (6) through twenty^ine (21).
experience difficulties in day-to-<lay life due to a diagnosis of SED. and are at risk of mutti-agency
involvement. Through FAST Forward, these children, youth, and their families can l^e served in their
home communities, while living in their natural homes and attending their community's school program.
Outcomes of a high fidelity Wraparound program Include, but are not limited to; increased positive
social, academic, and behavioral outcomes and community conrtectedness for children, youth, and

.families; decreasi^ out,of home, school, and community placements (and duration of such); Increased
caregiver capacity/decreased caregiver strain; and access to programs and supports (hat are uniquely
tailored to each child arid family's culture, strengths, and goals. This is a-unique program in New
Hampshire to service the described population inthis manner.

The utilization of high fidelity Wraparound with an SED population has demonstrated a
reduction in the repeat use and duration of stays for children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital.
Additipnally. this program embodies the values and principles of a-System of Care within the
Department. Vkfhich.ls required to be shown under RSA 135:F. System of Care Lavy.

As stated In Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall be provided after June 30. 2017.''and the Department shall, not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has t)een received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 201&-2019
biennia.

NFI North. Inc. was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for
Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human Services' web site from March 9. 2017
through April 10, 2017. The Department received two (2) proposals. The proposals v^re reviewed
and scored by a team of indivldoals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of (he strengths and weaknesses of the proposals, The Score Summary is attached.
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As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C*1 of this contract, this Agreement
- has the option to extend for up tOrtNvo (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families with children and
youth with SED may have fewer services available to thern in their community and statewide to.meet
the challenges that mental illness presents for these children, youth, and their families. There is likely
to be an increase in out-of-community and out-of-state placements for these children and youth, as
well as more frequent aryf longer stays for these children and youth at New Hampshire Hospital. ■

Area served: Statewide.

•  Source of Funds: Source of Funds: 3% Federal Funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental

Health Services Administration, System of Care Grant, and 97% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. .

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

b V.

,  , ,

Approved by: J^^rey A/ Meyirs
Commissioner

Tht Otportiiitnt Htolth and Human Stn>ict$'Mistion U lojain and fomilitt in providing apportunilitt for
eicittni u heaUh and indtptndence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Care Management Entity Services for

FAST Feivrard

RFP Nome

RFP-2018-OBH-02-CAREM

RFP Number.

1.

2.

Bidder Rame

LlfeShare Managemenl Group, LLC

NFI North. Inc.

3. ;

T4\

5.

Pass/Fell.

. Maximum

Polnta

Actual-

Point#

1S5 91

165 ■' 159

16S d

165 -0

165 0 - ■

Reviewer Names
■ ^any^enneyrPro^pcoaTistr

t. LJt*KChild Behavwral Hlth

2.

3.

5.

, Tech
Kerri Murphy. Oivitlon of Behavil

■ HeaHh. Prog Specialist »V. Tech

Adele Gallanl. Admirtistrator.
Bureeu Child Sehavrt Htth. Tech

Erica Ungarelli. Director. Sureau of
Child Behavioral Hllh. Cost

Admintstralor.il, Cost

6.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DETARTME^n'OF INPORMATiON TECHNOLOGY

27 HAxen Dr., ConcmL NH 00301
Pax: 6Q3-27l*15l« TDD Access: t-a0O735-2964

wwwj\h.goy/doh

Deals GodM
Commtiilomr

/use 12,2017

Jeffity A. Mcyen, Coounissioaer
Departmeot ofHcahfa eixl Humao Sen'ices
Sue ofNew Hompahire
129 Pleaseat Street

Coacord, NH 03301

Dear Coousiisiooer Meyers:

This letter rtpresencs fomal notificatibn thai the Department of Information Tcchrtology (DolT)
has approved your agency*8 request to eoti? into a contract with NFl North. Inc. of Costoocook, NH as
described below and refemced as Dorr No. 2016-069.

NFI North. Inc. will provide Care Management Entity services for the FAST Forward
Program. The System of Care Orast requires DHKS to 'implement the oecossary
infraitructure to aupport a System of Cart (SCX^ for te^tng youth with complex
behavioral he^th concenis, such as a Serious Motional Disturbasccs (SED). Under the
grant period DHHS serves as the Cere Management (CME) for the FAST Forward
program. A CME model is Intended'to coordinate and streamitne the necessary services
for femilies with a child/youth that has an SED.

The amount of the contract Is not to exceed $194320.00, and shall become effective July
1.2017 or upoQ the date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later,
tluough June 30.2019. .

.A copy of this letter should accompany the.Department of Heahfa and Human Services'
submission to Ae Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

AAri

Denis Goulct

DG/kaf

.Dorrd201M9

oc: Bruce Smhh. IT Maca^, DoIT

'innovottvf Ttcfinologits Todayfor New Hompshln's Totriofrow*



FORM NUMBER P07 (vmion S/8/15)
Subjcci: Cofc ManBBCfncnl Enlilv Strvicet for FAST Fonvard ̂ Rf P-201 •

Ngticc: This agreemcni and all of iu aiuchmenis shol) become public upon submission lo Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information thai is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Suie Agency Name
Oepanmcni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 033010857

1.3 Contractor Narric

Nf I North. Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

PO Box 417

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

1.5 Contractor Phone '
Number'

6O3-74'6.75S0

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92:92l0l0O0530000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2019

1.8 Price Lithitation

SI94020

1.9 Contracting Offica for Stale Agency
Jonathan V. Callo, Esq. Interim Director of Contracts and
Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246 .

I.IJ Contrac^rSignature 1.12 Nome and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of/leu)^jH7XMX*X.County of' .rv^ C^Oc

"  "3^2.^01-7 ^
.Ixfore^cundcrsigncdofriccr. personally appeared the person identified in block 1. 12; or satisfactorily

US^terbat^^^^^n whose name is signed in b.lMk I. II, and acknowledged that s/he executed this docurncni in the capacity
'dicaifttin bl6e^|^2.".

• iOOfelUSIIQHireor^ot^'Publicor Jusiiceofthe Peace

JULYHWtO :

^^tleof Notary Or lustice ofthc Peace

.14 State Agency Signature 1.15 Name ond Title of State Agency Signatof)-

I..I6 Approval by iIk N.H. Dcpanmcni of Administration, Division of Personnel ̂ ^pplkoble) ^ ^
\ By; Director, On:

1.17 Approval At^rncy CcneraliForm, Substance and Execution) Ofoppl'CobU)>y\

Oy\

ui
1.18 Approval by the (Jovcmor and Ex/cutive Cou

By: (/
OJ pal ab

On:

Page I of4



2. EM PLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State ofNcw Hampshire, acting
through (he agency idcniiriedin block I.I ("State"), engages
coniractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shoil perform, the w-ork or sale of goods, or
both, identified arid more particularly described in the attached
EXinOrr a which is incorporated herein by rcfererice
("Sciviccs").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrccmcni to (he'
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if

. applicable, (hit Agreemcnl, and'ali obligaiioni of (he parties
hcreunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated irt
block I. IS, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreemcnl shall become elTective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (-Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor'commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to (he Effective Date shall be perfonncd at the sole risk of the
Comracior, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become'cfTcctivc, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation; any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Comracior'must complete all Services by the Completion Date '
specific in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONALNATUREOFAGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision ofihis Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreunder, including. '
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcrcuhdcr, arc
coniingeiil upon the availability and continued apivopriatton
of funds, and in no event shail the State be liable for any
payments hcreunder in excess ofsuch available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduaion or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold -
payment until such funds'become available, if ever, and shall
have (he right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coniractor notice ofsuch termination. The Suit' '
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account'
to (he Account tdcniificd in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The cohuaci price.-method of payment, and lerms-of '
payment are idcntltied and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Suie ofihe contract price shall be the
only and the'complete reimbursement to (he Contractor for all
expenses, of whaicver'naturc Incurred by the Comracior in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the ̂ rvlces. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounis
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounis required or pcrmiiicd by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7*€ or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unc.xpcetcd circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hercundcr, c.xcecd the Price Lirriilation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUaL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
d.l In connection with the perronnancc oTlhe Services, (he

Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, sute, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contrxior.
including, but not limited to. civil rights and cq«ul opportunity
laws. This may IrKlude the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids ar>d services to ensure that persons with communication '
disabilities. Including vision, hearing artd speech, can

• communicate with, receive iHrormaiion from, and convey-
information to the Contractor.' In addition, (he Contractor

shall comply with ell applicable copyright laws.'
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment becaijse of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orierttaiior^, or notional origin and will take
aflirrTiaiive action to prevent such-discrimination-.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded In arty pan by'monies of the
United Suies. the Coniractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opponuniiy"), as suppler7>enicd by the
regulations of the United Suies Oepanment of I ubor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rulcs.-regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Suies issue to
implemcni'these regulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
pcrmiiihe State or United Slates access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Coniractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that ail personnel engaged in the Sc^jces shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly '
licensed and otherwise authorized to db so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dote in block 1.7. the Comracior shall not hire,
end shall not permit any subcontractor or other pason. firm or
corporation with whom It is engaged in a combined effort to
-perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State.
employee or ofncial, who is rhatcrially involved in the
procuremeni, administration or performance of this

2of4
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Agrccmeni. Tht) provision shall survive lerminaiion bfihis
Agrecmcni.

7.3 ThcComrtctingOfricer specincd in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be (he Suit's reprcscnuiivc. in (he event
of any dispute concerning (he intcrprcution of this Agreement,
the Contneiing OITiccr's decision shall be finel for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDJES.

- 8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 railure to perform the Services sailsfacionly or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure tosiibmit any report rcquiried hereunder; and/or'
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of (his Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrenM of any Event of Default, the Sute
may lake any one, or more, or all, of the. following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written rsoiice specifying the Event
(}f Default artd requiring ii to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specificaiion oftinie. ihiny (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default Is.,
not timely remedied, lerrhinaie this Agriecmeni, effective two
(2) days aflcr giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Controcibr a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of (he coniract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Coniraetor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such time as the State

(Jctermincs that the Contractor has cured (he Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
6.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
(he Coniracibr any damages (he State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; arxl/or.
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATAMCCESS/CONFIDENTIAtlTV/

preservation;

.9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during (he
performance of, or'acquircd or developed by reason of, (hl.s '
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, repons.
fi.lcs, formulae, surveys, map's, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has'bccn received frum
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govcmcdby N.l-l. RSa
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Dtsclosureofdaia
requires prior wTiiien approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an caily termination of
this Agreement for any reason otha than the completion of the
Services, the Controeior shall deliver to the Contracting
Ornccr. not later than fiflecn ('I5)daysafler (he date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies pf (he Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in (he aliached EXMIUIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Coniraetor is in all '
respects an independent coniraetor. and is neither en agent nor-
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority lo
bind the Slate or receive any benefiis. (vorkcn' compensation
or.oiha emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATJON/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in (his Agreement without (he prior written notice and
consent of the Slate. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Conlracior without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, ju officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses sufTeredby.the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties osscrted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of-for which may be
claimed to arise out.oO the acts or omissions of the
Coniraetor. Nolwiihslandingthe foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a wiiver of the
sovereign immunity of (he State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of ihi.t Agreement.

M. insurance.
.14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain aisd
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following

■  ifuurancc:

14. I.I comprehensive general liability .insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOpcr occurrence and S2.000,(XX)
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subjeei to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80V* of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies describe in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of.New I (ampshire by the N.M. l^partmeni of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting OfTicer
identined in block 1.9, or his or.hcr successor, a ccrtiricatc(s)
ofinsurancc for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also Turnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identined in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtincate(s) of
insurance for oil rer>cwiii(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each ofihe insurance policies. The C€niric8tc(s)or
insurv^cc and any renewals thcrcofshall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. Each ccnincaicfs) of
insurance shaM'eoniain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the ConinciingOfrjcer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COiViPeNSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or excfhpi from, the requirements ofN.H.' RSA chapter 281-A
('■'(ycrkerj' Ccmpcnsalion").-
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the .
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall-
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Corhpcnsatipn in
connection with aciiviiies which the person propoMS to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Cfl'ieer ideniilied in block.1.9,0' his .
or her successor, proofofWorkers' Compensation in the
manna described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall rtot be
responsible for payment of any Workers" Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or.employce of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

\6. WAIVER OF BREACH. No'failurc by (he Suite lu
enforce any provisions hereof aHcr any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Dcfauli.or any Subsequent Event of Default. No express .
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
wniver'ofihe right of ihe Sutc to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or otha Event of Default
on the part of the Coniftclor.

i 7. NOTICE. Any noijcc by a party haclo to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered nr given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OITice addressed to the parties at (he addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. amendment. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto artd only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
E.xccuiive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under (he circumstances pursuant to
Suie law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agrecmcm
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or.
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics end this Agreement shall not be
consirucd to confer any such bcncfii.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words coniairted
therein shall'in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid irt Ihe inicrpreuiion, construction or meaning of Ihe '
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc irtcorporaicd hacinby
reference;

23.- SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc.hcid by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be conuary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions ofthis Agreement will remain in full force and
cffcet,

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a numba of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
undcrstartding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undersundings relating hereto.'
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for PAST Forward

Exhibit A

.'■d

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. . The Contractor shall ensure that all services provided to children, youth, and

families are in accordance with the core values of family and youth driven,
.culturally and linguistically competent, and community based.

1.2. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language
assistance/ communication access-services they will-provide -to persons with
limited English proficiency or who have communication disabilities to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire.-General Court or federal or state court orders may have an
impact on the Servlceis describe hereiri. the State Agency has the right to
modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement
so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.4. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and
until an .appropriation for these services has been received from" the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 and SPY 2020-
2021 biennia.

2. Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall worK collaboratively with the children, youth, arid

families enrolled in the PAST Porward program, as well as service providers,
in the process of assessing each family member's capabilities and challenge
areas In order to develop supports and interventions that are effective,
individualized and acknowledge the strengths of the family. .

. 2,2. The" Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination which .includes,- but is
not limited to; .

•  2:2.1. Maintaining a minimum of .five (5) Wraparound Coordinators.
2.2.2. . Expanding the Wraparound Coordination staff as needed! which is

"contingent on prior approval from DHHS..
2.2.3. Maintaining, a maximum caseload per Wraparound .-Coordinator of

seven (7) to eight (8) children/youth and their families.
2.2.4. ' Maintaining a Licensed Clinician, trained in System of Care

principles, who will provide clinical consultation and add a resource
for therapy as needed during transitions to local community mental

RFP-20l,6-DBH-02-CAREM - Exhibit A Contractor Initials
NFI North, inc.
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Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care fManagemont Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

health centers and other community service providers for individual
and family therapy. ' i '

2.2.5. Following the . practices outlined in the NH Wraparound 'Model
•  • curriculum.

2.2.6. Developing a community-based Plan of Care using the
individualized wraparound process and providing support in meeting
the needs and objectives of the Plan. •

2.2:7. Coordiriating and monitoring services between community agencies
to ensure needs are being effectively' and appropriately met. as
outlined In the child/youth's Plan of Care.

2.2.8. Assisting the. child/youth and their family In identifying natural
supports and community-based opportunities and activities that
nurture strength's, skills, and resilience including, but not limited to:

2.2.8.1. Sports.

2.2.8.2. Arts.

2.2.8.3. Clubs. .

2.2.8.4. Volunteering. ' . '

.2.2.9. Providing the child^outh and their family with educational
information and materials, as needed.

.  2.2.10. Establishing a.trusting relationship with.'the child/youth and their
family. \

2.2.11. Accepting'and encouraging the racial, ethnic, linguistic, religious,
national, international, and political diversity of individuals while
promoting. understanding and "respect for the culture, heritage,
history, beliefs and value's of all children, youth, families, and staff,
regardless of age. sex,.sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender
expression.

2.2.12. Scheduling,'coordinating-, and .facilitating'Family Team Wraparound
.  Meetings monthly that. will, consist of members identified in

collaboration with the child/youth and their family, -in order tO'
coordinate services to rneet the needs of the farhily.

2.2.13. Developing cooperative working relationships with all mernbers of
the Provider Network serving the child/youth-and their farriily. while
ensuring that services from providers are conducted as outlined In
the Plan of Care.

2.2.14. Establishing, and maintaining commurilcatlon .with (he child or
youth's school program,

2.2.1.5. Entering appropriate, case-specific information into the data system.

f^FP-201fl'DBH-02-CAREM Exhi>it A Conbsctor Initials ■
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Ntw.Hampshire Dopartnient of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

2.2.15.1. The Contractor must have an appropriate data system
that meets the Federal Requirements of HIPAA and the
ability to btll Medicaid.

2.2.16. Assisting families with the development of a safety or crisis plan.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide additional supports to. the child/youth and their
family including, but not limited to:

2.3.1.' Local transportation.

2.3.2. Family treatment.

2.3.3. Twenty-four (24-hour) crisis intervention.

2.3:4. Individual counseling.

2.3.5. Medical coordination,

2.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with' agencies statewide to provide
'WraparoufKl Coordination Services including,-but not limited to:

2.4.1. UNH - Institute on Disability.

2.4.2: NAMI-NH.

.2.4.3. Bureau of Children's. Behavioral Health.

2.4.4. Peer support agencies.

2.4.5. Community Mental Health Centers

2.5. The Contractor shall provide Individual Service Options (ISO) Intensive In-
.  Home services in accordance with He-C 6339, which include, but are not
■  limited to: •

.2.5.1. Crisis support. • • • ' ^
2.5.2. Intensive behavioral supports.

-2.5.3. Planned and emergency respite.

2.6. The Contractor shall.provide Youth" Peer Support to all youth, who are served
within the System of Care in order to enhance their ability to set goals for

, quality of life and transition to. adulthood, achieve greater independence in
advocating for themselves, and manage their.own wellness goals, while
increasing resilience. Youth Peer Support services include, but are not
limited to:

2.6,1. Strategic sharing of livied experience to decrease peer Isolation.'

2.6.2: Encouraging youth to share their own experiences in order to self-,
advocate and drive their own goals and planning. •

2.6.3. Supporting youth to identify triggers and barriers and to develop
their own wellness plans.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractof Initials
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New Hempehire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

2.6.4. Supporting youth to make informed decisions over all the domains of
their life.

2.6.5. Assisting youth svith participating in crisis prevention planning
activities and to understand their own crisis plans.

2.6.1. Supporting'youth in understanding and taking pride in one's own
diversity, as well as encouraging understanding, respect, sensitivity,
and acceptance of the diversity of others.

2.6.2.' Supporling youth in forming or maintaining community connections-
' and informing youth of opportunities- for leadership .trainings or
systems level engagement including, but not limited to*:

2.6.2.1. Wellness groups.

2.6.2.2. ■ Advisory groups.

2.6.2.3. Focus groups.

2;6.2!4. Regional planning activities. • -

2.6.3. . Supporting youth in navigating and understanding public and
corhmunity-resources, and how to access them.

2.6.4. Offering^sen/ices through Youth MOVE NH. ■

2.6.5. -Partnering with entities to help educate youth and their families on
community resources including, but not limited to:

2;6.5.1. Schools.

.  2.6.5.2. 211.

■  2.6.5.3. Parent Information Centers (PIC): ^
2.6.6.4. Local parks and rec.

2.6.5.5. Department of Health and Human Services.

,  , ■ 2.6.5.6. NH EASY.

2.6.5.7. Public health offices.

2:6.5.8. Clinics. . . .

.  ■ 2.6.5.9. Churches.

2.6.5.10. YMCA.

2.6.5.11. Local AA and NA chapters.

2.7. The Contractor shall make a determination of the appropriate stipends for
customi^ble goods and services on a one-time versus on-going basis that
are Intended to support a family member with meeting Identified underlying

• needs, and shall distribute the goods and services.' Customizable goods and
services may include, but are nollimited to:

2.7.1. A tank of home heating oil in the winter.

RFP-2018-DBH-02-CAREM Exhibit A Contractor initials
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Now Hampshiro Oopartmont of Hoalth and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

2.7.2. Prosocial therapeutic activities, including but not limited to, wellhess
classes and required equipment. ^'

2.7.3. Gas cards for a family to go to a treatment center with their
■ child/youth. .

2.8. The Contractor shall train and coach Wraparound .Coordinators by methods
Including, but not limited to:

'2.8.1. Obtaining services frorti the Institute on Disability at the University of
New Hampshire (lOD) to provide coaching and training for the FAST
Forward prograrh staff.

2.8.2, Ensuring that Wraparound Coordinators, and supporting staff ,
complete trainings which include, but are not limited to:

•2.8.2.1. Wraparound Coordinators and program manager shall
attend; all three (3) days of NH Wraparound Model
Facilitator training.

2.8.2.2. Wraparound Coordinators. Program Director and other
designated agency staff shall complete the Cultural, and
Linguistic Competency training (from NH Office of Minority
or- Refugee Affairs).

2.8:2.3. Wraparound Codrdir^ators should attend monthly
wraparound supervision group.

2.8.2.4. Wraparound Coordinators shall work with two (2) families
for at least three (3) "months and passed a' fidelity of '
implementation check administered by his or her coach.-

2.8.2.5., The Wraparound Coordinator shall apply, on the lOD.
website and be approved as a. certified Wraparound
Coordinator.

2.8.3. Coaching on a schedule including, but not limited, to:

2.8.3.1. Weekly for the.first six (6) months of employment.

■  2.8.3.2. Bi-weekly from month six (6) to month"(12).

2.8.3.3. Monthly after one year of service.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that Wraparound Coordinators have the
■knowledge and skills required to effectively work, with families', including
considerable know/tedge and skill In the domain of cultural and linguistic

. competence, as detailed in the NH Children's Behavioral Health Core
Competencies, available at:

http://lod.unh.edufsites/dBfault/files/media/NHChildrensBehav/nh bhcomoete
ncies final.pdf

2.10. The Coniractor shall encourage the diversity that children, youth, and their
families may bring to their FAST Forward encounters by collabbratin^with
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New Hampshire Depsrtmont of Health and Human Services
Cere Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

the DHHS Behavioral Health Cultural and Linguistic Competence (CLC)
Coordinator for technical assistance which includes, but is not limited to:

.2.10.1. Conducting a CLC organizabonal assessment.

2.10.'2. Developing a plan to increase access to and quality'of appropriate
behavioral health services for all potential populations.

2.10.3. Participating in the Behavioral Health Equity Work Group, a peer
learning network of- children's behavioral health and child serving
organizations.

2.11. The Contractor .shall administer evaluation, tools in accordance with the
FAST Forward Prograrh Manual which include, but are not limited to:

2.11.1. The Outcome Rating Scale (QRS) which is a quantitative youth and
family self-report survey. The responses will'be'reviewed by the
FAST -Forward Coordinator and kept in the farnily's case record and
forwarded to the FAST Forward Program Manager.

2.11.2. The Meeting Rating Scale, also known as Session Rating Scale
(SRS), which is a quick survey of the family and youth at each-
Wraparound Team Meeting. It is administered'at the end of each
Wraparound Team Meeting. The responses will be reviewed by the
FAST Forward Coordinator and kept in the family's case record and
forwarded-to the FAST Forward Program Manager.

2.11.3. The Document "Review Measure (DRM), which is a review of case
file content, is completed by the "FAST Fonward Program Manager.
The Vendor must allovy the FAST Forward Program Manager
access to case documents for this review to be completed.

2.11.4. The Children and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) too!
which is an initial assessment to determine a child/youth's eligibility
for the FAST Forward Program and an on-going review measure, to
be completed'at a minimum of eyery.six (6) .months, to measure for
progress with the child/youth and family's needs.and strengths.

.. 2.11.4.1. The Contractor, will be responsible for completing this,
assessment, unless completed by child/youth's clinician.

2.11.4:2. The assessment will be kept in the family's case record
and the. FAST Forward Prograrn Manager'may request
the information in order to do a Quality Assurance.'

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure (hat a leadership team of up to three (3)
memt>ers participates in an annual peer review process which Inicludes,- but
is not limited to:

2.12.1. Review of program services.

2.12.2. Documentation and Outcome Data Review.

l/r
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New Hampshiro Department of Health'and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

2.12.3. Anonymous survey questionnaires for children/youth . and their
families. '

2.12.4. Interviews v/hich include, but are not limited to:

2.12.4.1. ChildrenA'outh and their families

2.12.4.2. Wraparound Coordinators.

2.12.4.3. Sub-contractors and stakeholders.

2.12.4.4. Program Director.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain a minimum of five (5) Wraparound
Coordinators. . • . • •

3.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient supen.'isory and administrative
support for the Wraparound Coordinators.

-  3.3. The Contractor shall employ one (1) Program Director.

3.4. The Contractor shall employ one (1) Licensed Clinician.

3.5. the Contractor, shall maintain an ISO program staff that is consister^t with
He-C 6339.standards. . .

3.6. The Contractor shall mairitairi pet diem direct support staff as needed."

4. Definitions

4.1. Children - Children ages five (5) through ten (10).

4.2. FAST Forward (Families, and Systems Together) - A program de.signed to
provide support to children, youth, and their families by using a high fidelity
Wraparound approach, and adhering to a System of Care model. -

4.3. He«C 6339 - HerC 6339 identifies" qualification and performance
requirements to become a provider of community biased In-home services for
the Division of Children, Youth and Families (DCYF) and service provision
for the FAST Forward program. The proposed rule includes: five (5) different
providers of services: child health support .services, home based therapeutic
services, therapeutic day treatment, adolescent community therapeutic
senrices. and iri-home individual service options (ISO). The rule applies to
the community^based in-home service providers who receive Medicaid or
financial reimbursement from the Department for services provided to.
children and families;

4.4. Individual Service Options (ISO) Intensive In-Home Services - ISO
(Individual Service Options) in-home services usually last up to six (6)
months, though this can be extended with agreement from the treatment
team. This service can .be used to help strengthen families and prevent
removal of-children from the home, or can be used to assist in the
reunification process. Services delivered to the home ir^lude
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Now Hompshifo Doportmont of Health ond Humon Services
Caro Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit A

indivWual/family counseling and support. 24/7'on call emergency support,
respite, crisis' management, treatment plan, development and
Implementation, transporlalicn. advocacy with schools, health providers and
other community resources and assistance with any other identified needs.

4.5. Wraparound: A definable, individualized and strengths-based planning
process that incorporates a child and family team and results in a unique set
of services and supporls for a child and family, with the plan closely
monitored to achieve a positive set of outcomes.

4.6.- Youth - Youth agies eleven (1.1) through twenty-one (2.1).

5. Deliverables

■  5.1. The .Contractor shall provide Wraparound Coordination to a minimum of
thirty-five (35) children/youth arnJ their'famllies per year.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forward

Exhibit 6

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation.
•  block 1.8. for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope

of Services.

2. Payment for said services shad be made as follows;

2.1. The Contractor will-submit an invoice by the tenth (10"*) working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month. The State shall make payment to the,
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor
services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

2.2. The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
Division for Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant Street .

Concord. NH 03301
3. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days"from the.

Form P37, General Provisions. Contract Completion "Date, block 1.7.

4. Notwithstanding anything to the cpntrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld', in whole or in part, in the event of
nbncompiiance with any State or Federal law. rule or regulation appiioable to the
services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this. Agreement.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited" to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the .Governor and. Executive Council.

6. Funds anticipated to be available, from the Department of Health and Human
Services (Department)' are:

•  6.1. $5,000 per State Fiscal Year for administrative services, for a total two-year
value of $10,000. • •• /•

6.2. $27,000 per State Fiscal Year for attendance of Wraparound team
meetings, for a total two-year value of $54,000.

6.2.1. Natural supports, for example a neighbor, grandmother, or'coach.
may receive up to $25.00 per hour.

6.2.2. Master level professionals may receive up to $50.00 per hour. ■

6.3. $45,000 per State Fiscal Year for Customizable Goods and Services for
families (with a $1,000 cap per family), for a total two-year value of $9QX)00.
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services
Care Management Entity Services for FAST Forvrard

Eihibil B

6.4. $20,160 per Stale Fiscal Year for the.Vendor to subcontract for Youth Peer
Support and Leadership, for a total two-year value of $40,320.

7. The Department will prior authorize services as listed below, and then the Vendor
will bill Medicaid. The Department will approve the use of the necessary" ISO code

.  for billing. The Medicaid billing rates svill be:

7.1. $70 per day for Care Coordinalion,

7.2. $130 per day to include .Care Coordination, along with the full array of ISO
Level services.

RFP.20ie-OBH-02-CAREM

NFI North; Inc.
Exhibit 6
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New Hampshire Dopart/nont of Health and Human Services
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that aD funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor lor services provided to eligible
individuals and. In the furtherance of (he aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

V Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of indfriduats such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of DetormlnatJon: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
(he Department lor (hat purpose and shaD be made and remade at.such tirhes as are prescribed by

•  the Department.

3. Documentation: (n addition to .the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which Tile shall lr>ciude all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shaO furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Oeparlmenl may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that aQ epplicanis for services hereunder. as well as
Individuais declared Ineligible have.a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The

.-Contractor hereby bovenanls and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted.to Tifl out ■.
an application form ond that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or KIchbache; The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or ■
make a payment, graluity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work deiailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
ariy officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Rotroac'tlvo Paymonta: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other.documenl. contract or understanding. <1 is expressly understood end agreed by the parties

'  hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any ind'rvidual prior to the Effectiye Date' of the Contract
arrd no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to .the date on which the individual applies (or services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination Ihat the irvjividual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Depahmeni to purchase services
hereunder at'a rate which reimburses (he Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quatily of such service, or at a
rate.which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to inetigibie individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after recetpl of the Final

.  Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates .charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third parly funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder, in which event r>ew rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs:

Ctfii&ilC-SptcillProvtsloaj Conusoor (nlUs
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7.3. Demand repayment of the. excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to malie
auch repayment shaD constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the etigibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimtMrse the Department for all funds paid by the Deparlmenl to the Contractor for services
provided to any indtvidual who is found by the Oepartmerit to be inertglble for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, Ol'SCtOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contrador
covenants ond agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: boolcs. records, documents ond other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

•  and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contraci. and all"
income received or coDccted by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and pradiccs which sufficienUy and •
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable lo the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requlsrtibns and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-Kind conirlbullons. labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the.

• Department.
8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or vlsh records for each recipient of

services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of opplication end
. . . eligibility (Including aD forms required lo determine eligibility for each such fecipicnt). recofds

regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department lo obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where approbate end as prescribed by the Department regutaUons, the
Contractor shall retain.medrcal records on each patient/recipient of services.

9.. Audit:. Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. Il ls recommended that the report l>e prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-t33, "Audits ol States. Local Governments, and Non

■Profil Organizations" ond the provisions of Standards for Audit of Goverrimenlal Organizations.
Programs. ActivilJes and Functions, Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as

- they pertain'lo financial compliance audits.
9. t. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United Stales Depertmcnt.of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts end iranscrlpts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in llmllation of obligations of the Contract. H It
.understood and agreed by the Contractor th.al the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contraci lo which exception has been taken or which have been disaPow«d because of such an
-exception.

to. Confldontljltty of Rocorda: All informaUon. reports, ond records molnloined hereunder or collected
in cwnectJon with the performance of the services and the Contract shan be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to slate-laws and the regulations of
the Deportment regarding the use and disclosure of such-Information, disclosure may ba made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directfy confuted to the administration ol the services and the Contraci; and.provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information cor>ceming o recipient for "any purpose not
directly connected with the, edministratioo of the Department or the Conlractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wrinen consent of the recipient hli
attorney or guardian.

ExNbil C.-Sptdsl ProvblOfti
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Slatisticai: The Contractor agrees to submit the foQowing reports at the following
times rf requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Wiiften interim "financial reports containing a detailed description of

al] costs and non>aIlowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Informalion as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submrtiod on the form
designated by the Oepartmeni or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11-.2. . Final Report: A report shall t>e subrnWed withjn thif^ (30) <jays after the end of ihe term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in o form aatlsfactpry to the Deportment end shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives staled in the proposal
and other intormatK^ required by the Department.

12. ComptoUon of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Deportment of the
maximum riumber of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the. price iimltalton
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the pariies horeundcr-(except auch obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term* of this Contract and/or

.  s^lve the termination of the Contract) shall terminate..provided liowever, that if, upon review of the
Firxal Expenditure Report the Department shaD disallow any expenses claimed by the Gontmctor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or lo recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents.-nbUces, press releases, research reports and"other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance df the services of the Contract shall includc^the following •
statement.

•  13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Service.s. with funds provided in part
by the Slate of New Hampshire and/or such .other funding sources as were available or

• required, e.g., the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownorehip;. AD materials (written'; video, audio) produced or
purchased ur^er the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ail original materials .
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports, Contractor shall rwt reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In Ihe operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall cpmply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county end. municipal authorities and v^th any direcb'on of ,any Public Officer or officers
pursuarit to laws which shall impose an order or duly upon the contractor with resp>ect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If.any governmental license or
permit shaD be reduired for ftte operation of the said facility or it>e performance of the said services
the Contractor" will procure said license or permit, and will at al) times comjjjy with the terms and

■  conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requiremerits. the .
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
compty yrith all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Stale Offic.e of the Fire f^arshal aM
the local fire protect'on agency, and shall be in conformaiKe with local building and zoning codes by
laws and regulallons.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Empioymeflt
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of JuiUco Programs (OCR), if H has
received a single award of-$500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or ■

CxhiM C - St>«cUi Pfowbiom ■ ContrKiv inKli/i
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more employees, il wil) maintain a current EEOP on file ar>d submit en EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certrtylng thai its EEOP is on fiJe. For recipients receiving less than J25.000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, (he reciplcrtt win provide an
EEOP Cerlification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profrt organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are'required to submit a certtficaiion form to the OCR to claim the exemption
EEOP Cenification Forms are available at hitp.7/www.ojp.u8doi/about/ocrfpdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Umrtod English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons wtth Limited Engilish Proficiency, and resultir>g agency guidance, national origin
discrimination lixtodes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
c^plianco with the Omnibus Crime Conl/ot and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and TiUe VI of the'Clvll
Rights Act ol 1964. Contraclors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancemoht of Contractor Employoo WhlaUoblowor ProtoctJona: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified AcquisHion Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. J150.000)

COHTftACTOR Employee WHisaesLOwgR Ricktsano Requiremcwt To Ikform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013).

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subjecl to the whistleblowcr fights
•end remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblowcr protections established el '
41 U.S.C. 4712 by s^tion 826 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 fPub-L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(Ij) The Contractor shall Inform its employees In writing, in the predominant language of the workforce
^  of employee wtilstleblower rights and protectldns under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section

3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Inscn the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

.19. Subcontractora: OHHS recognizes thai the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health card services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responslbiiily and accountability for the lunclionfs). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

.  funcHon(8). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifics aciivities and reportina
• responsibilHies of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions II
the subconlrador s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors ore subject to the same contractual
coitions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor corripliance •
with those conditions.

When the Contractor, delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before dcleqalino.

the function » w

Have a written agreement wfth the tubcontractor.that specifies activlfiea ar^d reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions^evocation w«l be managed if the subcontractor's
perforrnarKe Is r>ot adequate'

19.3. Monitor the su^nlractor's performance on an ongoing basis

EOtftil C - Sp«ci*IProvhioni Cofxbedy InXl*
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responslbBHies, and when the subcontractor's performarice will be reviewed

19.5. Ol-(HS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
laite corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms Shan have the fOl>ow<ng meanings:

COSTS: Shalt mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
eOowable and reimt)ursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with slate and federal taws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health'and Human Services.-

FINANCIAL management GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled 'Financial Management Guidelines' ond which coritains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the Stale of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If appticatilc. shall mean the document sut)mlfted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Deportment and containing a deschpiion of the ̂ rvices to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance wfth the terms and conditions of the Contract end sening forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall rnean thai
period of time or that specified activity determined by the department and specified in Exhibit 8 of the
QontracL

FEOERAUSTATE l-AW; Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, ruiei. orders, and'policies. etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as'
they may be amended or revised from (he time to lime. /

CONTRACTOR MANUAL; Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services contaming a compilation of all regulations promiigated pursuant to the New Hampshire -
Adm'inislralive Procedures Ad. NH RSA Cn 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regutatioos promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING DINER FEDERAL FUNDS; The Contrador guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract wtit not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

C - Sp«cUI P/ovbtoni Contriaw IrViliti
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. SubparaQraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditk>nat Nature of Agrvemer^t, is
replaced as follows:

4. conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the cortlrary. all obligations of the State
hereur>dcr. incioding without (imitation, the continuahce of payments. In whole or in part,

.  under (his Agreement are contingenl upon continued approphation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any slate or fecferal legislative or executive action that reduces, eiimlnales. or otherwise
mettles the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provlted in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, In whole or In part. In r>o event shell the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available fur>ds. (n
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available furtds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving (he Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or m^iftcatlon.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account, In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of tt^e General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding 11^
foDowing language;'

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole dlscret'ion of
the State. 30 days after gMng the Contractor written notlM that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In Ihe event-of early termination; the Contractor shall, wfthin 15 days .of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to.the State a Transition Plan'tor services under the

• Agreement, including but not limilad to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under (he Agreement and.establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 the Contractor shall fuDy cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the.Trarwitlon Plan including, b.ul not limited to. any infcrmalipo or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transltion'Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to (he Stale as
requested.

10.4, in the event that services under the Agreemer\l, including but not limited to cficnts receMng
sbrvices under (he Agreement ore transrtioned to having serSrices delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the. Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the TransKloo Plan; i

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
aboul the transition. The Contractor shall Include Ihe proposed comrhunicalions- in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two additional years; subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor
and Executive Council.'

'6sn>M C-1 - Rtviilom 10 Stxndani Provitiom
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor idenltfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply ovilh (he provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Aclol 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 '
U.S.C. 701 el seq.}. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certificatian;

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDFVIOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certificabon is required by the regulaUons implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, TiOe V. Subtitle 0: 41 iJ.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and'published as Pan 11 of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), end require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and.8ut>-
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, eub-grahtees and 9ut>-conlractor8) that is a State'-
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon \sfiich reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shad be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
lerrnination of grants, or government wide suspension or debanmenl. Contractors using this form should
sei^ It to: '

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services •
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: " •
l.V. Publishing a statement notifying employees thai the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a conirolled substance is prohibited in the grantee's •
workplace and specifying the actions thai will be taken againsl employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-rfree awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitalion, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties' that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the v^rkplace;
1.3. Making H o requircmenl that each emfrtoyce to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statemenl required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employrrient under the grant, the empfoyee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statemenl; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing ol his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

■ slalute occurhng in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
convicUon; -

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, wtthin ten calender days after reccMng notice under ,
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employeo.or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide noBcc. including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EihlMO-CsnlllcstlonrseardlnaOrvgFrM Contractor InitiA
WoMiploco RoQukOflionU
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has designated a centrai point lor (he receipt of such notices. Notice shali include the
identirication number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Takir^g one of the following aclbns. within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
t .6.1. Taklng appropriate personnel action against such en employee, up to end Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or '

t .6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or •
rehabUitollon program approved for such purposes by o Federal. Stale, or local hoahh.
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. ■ Making a good faith effort to continue tomolntain a drug-free workplace through
implementalionof.paragraphs 1.1. 1.2, 1.3. 1.4. 1,5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the sitc(s) for (he performance dfwork done In
connection wrilh (he specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, counjy, state, zip code) (tist each location')

Check O K there are workplaces on file that are not Identrfied here.

Date

Contractor Name: ^ p'

Tide:

EitiM 0-C«nircjllonr*gwifing Drug Frc« ConVKlv IntUsli
Workpiac* Rsqurontnb
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identined in Sectiori 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Low 10M21. Government wide Guidance lor New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C.-1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute Ihe following Certillcation;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program ur>der Title IVrO
'Social Services BlocH Grant Program ur>der Title /X
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undefsigried certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behaff of the undersigned, to •
any person for lnfluencir>9 or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Meoiber
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in •
corinectlon with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or

,, modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific menOdn
sub-grantee or aub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
infiuer>clng or attempting to Influence an.officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
on officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee'or But>-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (DiscJosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in eccordarKe with .its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certtficallon be Included in the award .
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) end that do lub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly!

•This certif^tion is a material representation of fact upon which reliar>ce was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certificatior> is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Tide 31, U.S. Code. Any person who faDs to fde the required
ccrtificallon shan be subject too civil penalty of not less than 510.000 and not more than $100 000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

^7

7a
Date Name; p, C^'SApo^/i. e<L

TlUe: ^/rvc^

lC<^Etf>lbi)E-C«<VSc«>en.R*g»rSing(.oa6y4no Cpfu/>aof inftlHi ,■ .
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New Hampshire Oopartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Presideni. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Ocbarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have (he Contractor's
representative. as identiried in Sections l.t i and i.l2ofthe General Provisions execute the following
Cerlificalion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary parlicipant is providing the
' certification set out below.

2. The in3l)ll]ty of a person to provide the certification required below, wlii nol'neccssarijy result In denial
■ of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shalJ submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification, The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection wtth the NH Department of Health end Human.Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

• participant to furnish a ceniflcation or an expianatlon shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

1 The certification In this dause is a rriaterial representation of fact upon which reliance vras placed
when DHHS dete/rnlned lo enter Into this transaction. If it is teter delermined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an errorieous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary particlpanl shall provide immcdiaJe written notice to (he DHHS agency to
whom this propoMi (contract) is submitted If at any lime the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred,* 'suspended.' 'ineligible,.' 'lower tier covered •
. transaction.' 'participant.' 'person.' 'primary covered transaction.' •principal.* 'proposal.' and
'voluntarHy excluded.' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and'

.  Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions. " .

6. The prospective primary participani agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
■  proposed covered transaction be entered Into, tl shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered

transaction with a persori who Is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voiuritarliy excluded
from participetion in this covered transaction, unless aulhorircd by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it vril) include the
dause titled 'Certiflcatjon Regarding Oebarment. Suspension, ineliglblliry and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS. without modificalioo. in an lower tier covered
transactions and in eD soGcitalioos for lovtrer tier covered transactions.

8. A participani in o covered transoctlon may rely upon a certiflcalien of o prospeclive participant in a
tower tier covered transaction that H is not debaned. suspended. ineiigibJe. or Involuntarily excluded
frbrn the covered transaction, unless it knows thai the certification Is enoneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each'
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be cdnslojed to require eslabCshment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certif«ailon required by this clause. The knowledge and

E^BF-CfrtiaciScftRsgsreingCistisnnert. Svipeftilofl Cowielo/Irtiius
And OUw RsiporufMHy Msnen ■ ^ ■
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Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normaDy possessed by a prudent
person in ihe ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transacliona authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a parlkipant in a
, covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person whp Is
suspertded. debarred, ineligible, or vduntahly excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

■ PRIMAf^Y COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its krtowtedge 6nd belief, that it and Its
'  prirKipals: '

11.1. are not presenoy debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or
volunlartiy excluded from covered transactions by any Federal depar^'ent or agency; -

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
.  a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in

connection vwth obtaining, attcmptitig to oblain. or performing a public (Federal; Stale or local)
Iransaction or e contract under a public Iransaclion; violation of Federal or State antitrust''
statutes or commission of embezzlemenl. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are nol presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity'
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this cerOflcatlon; and

.  11.4. have not within a .three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or kscal) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of Ihe statements In this
ceriificaUon. such prospective participant shafi attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
,13. By signing and submitting this.lower-tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as'

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are nol presently debarred, suspended, proposed lor debarmeni. declared ineligible, or

votuntahty excluded from participation in this irar^saction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. *^ere the prospective lower tier participarii b unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospectfye participant shall attach ah explanation to this proposal (contraci).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contr8Cl).that It will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Oebarmenl. Suspension; IneligibilUy. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in aD solicitations for lovrer tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

ohh f
' Name: /f.
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NQNOISCRIMINATIQN. EQUAL TREATMFNT OF FAITH-eASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Tho Contractor Idenlffiod in Soclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identined in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foUowino
certification:

■ Contractof will comply, and will require any subgrantoes or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal itondiscriminalion requirements, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe'Strecls Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. Sociion 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, ellher In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefiis. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justico Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from'discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal •
Employment Opportunity Plan requiremehls;

- (he Civil Rights Act of 1B64 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial ' '
assistance from discriminatir>g on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients pf Federal financial
assistance from discrtminating on the basis of diisabifity. In regard to empioymeni Dnd'the^ffverv of
services or benefits, in any program Of activity:

- the AmeriMns with Disabilities Act of 1990(42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits .
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment Slate and local"
government services, public accommodations, comrnercial facilities, and transportation;

■ the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683. 1685-86). which prohibiu
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;.
- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibiU discrimination on the
basts pf age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not ir>clude
employment discrimination;

*  0' Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 •. (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Norvdiscrimlnation; Equal Employment Opportunity Policies
and Procures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and'communiiy
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamenlal principles and policy-rriakinq
cntena for partr>eriNps wllh faith-based and rwighborhocd.organiiatlons;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Orgarjijatjons); and WhlsOebfower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The NaUonal Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L, 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Prooram for '
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whbllcblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activllles in cortnecllon with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliar>ce is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certificallon or violafion of tho certification shaU be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmeni.

s.

Eiliibit C
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

tn the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative ager)cy makes a Finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of (he finding to (he Office for Civil Rights, to
(he applicable contracting agency or division within (he Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as tdentlfied In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following'
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
-Indicated above.

Con\ractorName:/1/^X ■

/y_
Date Name: *to 77^-

Title: ^xfc u'lrec/ef*

CtfdbBC '

*  ' / - ConuacterlnbUts
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion pt any Indoor facility owned or leased or
' contracted for by an enbty and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
(aw does not apply to chDdren's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicatd funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment.. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the-law may result in the imposition of a cMI monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or.Ihe imposition of an administrative compliance order on. the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contraclor's'
represenlative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the follovnng
certiflcalion:

1. • By signing and submittlng.this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Acl'of 1994.

Contractor Name: ^

JdikL

EnNDlt H - CcnincxUon Rigvdtng Conl/^aor ir^sJi
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability .and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy end Security of Individually Identiroble Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business essociates. As defined herein, 'Business.
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive. us« or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Oeparlment of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions. ■

a. 'Breach* shall have Ihe same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such lerr^.in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
.of Federal Regulations.

c. •'Covered Entity' has" the meaning given such term in section ifin 1Q3 nf TiMa at
Code of Federal Regulations.

.d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQaregation' shall have the seme meaning as the term "data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.'-

f- 'Health Care Ooerations* shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations*
In 45.CFR Section 164.501.

fl: 'HjTECH Act' meanS'the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TItleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery end Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HiPAA' means the Health Insurance Porlabillty and Accountability Act of 1996, ̂ bilc Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy end Securlty of Individually Identifiable Heallh
Information. 45 CFR Paris 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. -

1. 'Individual' shall have the same rT>eaning a8 Ihe term 'individual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
. and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

f. •Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Indrvldually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Paris 160 and.164. promiilgated under HIPAA by the United States '
Department of Heahh and Human Services.'

"Protected Health Information' shall have the same rneaning as the term 'protected health
intormation' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited 1o the Information created or receive by
Business Associate, from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

^  Sjtnwii CwTgwao/mwito
HtillK inujrine* PoruM-Ty Acl'
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PtgalolS One



Now Hainpshird Oepartmont of KeaUh and Human Services
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I. 'RgQuired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the tenm "required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean.the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or.
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards (or the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

*  • \

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed'or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Derinitlons • All terms not otherwise denned herein shall have the rrieaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to.time, and the

■  HITECH . • ■ •
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Pleclosuro of Protected Health information.

a.. ' Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or trarismit Protected Health
' Information (PHI) except as reasonably n^essary to provide the services outlined under

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shatl not use. disclose.'maintain or transmit
PHI in any nxanner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. •

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper managerrient and administration of the Business Associate;
II. . As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data.aggregatioh purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third par^, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third parly that such PHI will be held conndentlally and

■ used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Assodate. in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security. arKl Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiatity of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request.fcr disclosure on-the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

V2014 CjhJbltl Contiaaot MUati
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Exhibit!

- Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards-of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restriclions and shall abide by any addHional security safeguards.

(3) bbligattons and Activities of Bualnosa Associate.

8. The Busiriess Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immedialely
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of'protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that'may have on Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business. Associate shall immedialely perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be '
limiled to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected heahh Information involved, including the-
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re^identificaiion:

o  The unauthorized person used Ihe protecied health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;' ■

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
. 0 .The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of.the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall compty with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach NoUficalion Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or '
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Cove.red Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and •
Security Rule. •

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associales that receive, use or have
.  access to-PHl under the Agreerrieni. to agree In wriiing to adhere to the sarr*

restriclions and condilions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
. Ihe duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
• shall be considered a direct third party beneftciary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associales. who will be receiving P
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcerr^ent and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

i. Wlhin five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books. agreen>ents. policies.and'procedures relating.to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covcred Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g.. Within ten (10) business days Cf.receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual coniairwd in a Designated Record -
Set. the'Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill ils
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for" an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with'45 CFR Section
164.528:

j. . Within ten (10) business days of receiving e written request from Covered Entity for a
•  request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Aswciate shall rnake available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obfigations '
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with"45 CFR
Section .164.528.

k. ■ In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI"
.  directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

business days fonward such' request to Covered Entity. ' Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
Shalt Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Enfity of such response as soon as practicable^

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agrecnf>ent, for any reason, the
-Business Associate shall return or destroy, as.specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destnjction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise .agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend ihe protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limli further uses and disclosures of such PH! to those
purposes that make the return or destructton.infeaslble. for so long as Business

ConiractM
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c.

As^lale nnainlains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify'to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation{s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 4S CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or discloaure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuaril to 45 CFR Section
164.505 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use of
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) TerminaNon for Cauflo

In addition to Paragraph.10 of.the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this .
Agreement the Covered Entity rhay immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imrhedialely
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timefrarr* specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that nellher termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(8) Miscellaneous

^  Definitions and Reaulaiory References. All terms used, but not other>vise defined herein,
shall have the sarDe meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, emended
from lime to'lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in cffecl or es
amended. .

b. Anr>^ndmgnt. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is •
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
.with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Thc^parlies agree that any ambiguityjn the Agreement shaD be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

ExNWn CBrV/idOf InJSUb
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New Hampshire Department of Hoajth and Human Services

Exhibit I

e. ScQfeQation. if any term or condition of this Exhibit t or the application thereof to any
pcrson(s) or circumstance is heW invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms end conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I reigardihg the use and disclosure of PHI. relurn or
destnjction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defensis and Indemhificatlon provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
stendard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the lerminetion of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Ihe'parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

'  />/Cr
The state

Signature of Authorized Represer)tative

Name of Authof^ed Representative.

Tide of Authorized Representative

— ''I
Dale ' '

jme ofijjeC

:

onlracior

Stgna^e of Authorized Representative
^. QuSq c ̂

Name.of Authorized-Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

V2014 Ejtfiiaiii
He«IUt Insurinci PorubCty Acl
Buunc It At todft»

Ptg*Q oiO

Contrador wusli&
. D...



Now Hampahtro Depoftmont of Hoolth and Human Servlcos
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT fFFATAI COMPUANCE

.The Federal Funding Accouniability 8r>d Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime' awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S26.000 and awarded on or after October 1.20t0. to report on
data related to executive compensation ar>d associated first*lier sub-grants of S25.000 or more. If lt\e
initial sward is below S2S,000 but subsequent grani modiricalions result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date Of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the foUowing information lor any
tulMvrard or coniroct award subject to (he FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity,
2. Amount of award

3. Fundirtg agerKy
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program sourco
.6. title dea'criptrve of the purpose of the funding action
7. '[.ocalion of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique idcniiner of (he entity (DUNS 0)
10. Tolal compensation and names of the lop five executives if; •

■ 10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the-Federal government, and those
revenues iare greater than $25M annuaDy and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to (he SEC.'

Prime grant reciplenis must submh FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus-30 days, in which
(he'award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparortcy Act. Public Low 109-282 and Public Low 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Conuoctor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of Ihe Ger>eral Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outDned above to the NH
Department of Health and Humah-Services and to comply wth all appficable provisions of (he Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name; /yfX' A/&/1 ^ •

7//
Date i ' Narhe:

Title. ^

EihiNi J-CffliricaUonR«9irdiAgihaFee«r*|Fun&'ng ConUactor Inltiils
Accaunt*bltty And Tr«Aj^r*ney Act (FFATA) CompAsftce
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Now Hampahlro Oopartment of.HeaKh and Human Sorvlces
Exhibit J

FORMA

As (he Contractor identifved In Section t .3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to (he
t>elow listed questions are (rue and accurate.

V The DUNS number (or your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed frscai year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your onmral gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts.

' loons, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

/ NO YES

If the answer lo 02 above is NO, stop here

If the answer lo 02 above Is YES. please answer (he following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your.
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a)'.or ̂  5(d) of the Securities •
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 'U.S.C.76m(o). 76o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO /YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names .and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
or'ganizaUon are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;'

Amount:

Arhount:

cuieHMVitoro

'EihM J - CertMcaOon R^treing ih* Fcdtitl Findtne
AccounuaiUy And Trvuai'tncy Ad (FFATA) Compbrcd

P*C«-2of2

Contractor Inttdi

Dale


